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Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affect Future Results

This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the "Exchange Act”). Forward-looking statements are statements other than historical information or
statements of current condition. We generally identify forward-looking statements by the use of terms such as
‘believe’, “intend”, “expect”, “may", "should”, “plan”, “project”, “contemplate”, “anticipate”, or other similar
statements. Examples of forward looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include, but are not
limited to statements that

(i) we are well positioned to address the evolving integration needs of our clients through our expertise in
messaging and location determination;

(if) we are developing relationships with communication infrastructure providers and we intend to expand
our domestic and international carrier base;

(iit) we plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through
deployment in customer networks or through hosted and subscription business models and we believe that our
software is positioned for early adoption by carriers;

(iv) wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions around the world for the foreseeable
future;

(v) both the number of users and messages per individual are projected to increase significantly;

(vi) we will continue to develop network software for wireless carriers that operate on all major types of
networks;

(vii) we will continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology to unlock valuable
information and expand the range of capabilities that the technology can accomplish for our customers;

(viii) we will continue to invest in our underlying technology and to capitalize on our expertise to meet the
growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications;

(ix) we intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies and technologies in order to
increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products, services and customer base;

(x) the Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat satellite constellation expands our
opportunity for SwiftLink sales volume;

(xi) we believe our expertise in the area of wireless E9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure
satellite communications can be leveraged into providing products and services to the Federal agencies;

{xii) we are continuing to enhance our deployable communication systems product line to take advantage of
the evolving environment of satellite communications;

(xiii) we believe that our company enjoys a competitive advantage because of its secure teleport and
integration capabilities along with deployable systems as a bundled offering;

(xiv) federal agencies, as well as state and local governments, are increasingly contracting with specialist
teams for functions such as network management, and for long-term projects such as software development
and systems integration;

(xv) we expect to continue generate significant portions of our total revenue from our largest customers;
(xvi) we expect to realize $116.0 million of backlog within the next twelve months;
(xvii) the bases on which we expect to continue to compete;

(xviii) we expect to require increasing levels of support from subcontractors and vendors and expand our
work under contract vehicles;
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(xix) we believe we have sufficient capital resources to mest our anticipated cash operating expenses,
working capital and capital expenditure and debt services needs for the next twelve months;

(xx) that we believe our capitalized research and development expense will be recoverable from future
gross profits generated by the related products;

(xxi) we believe our intellectual property assets are valuable and that we may realize revenue from patent
infringement claims;

(xxii) we believe we should not incur an material liabilities from customer indemnification requests;

(xxiii) the WWSS procurement vehicle is expected to contribute to significant sales growth and that we
expect to fulfill the potential values under WWSS orders;

(xxiv) expectations about the amount of future non-cash stock compensation;
(xxv) our assumptions and expectations related to income taxes and deferred tax assets;

(>xvi) we do not expect that the adoption of new accounting standards to have a material impact on the
company's financial statements, and

{xxvii) statements about financial covenants related to our loan agreements.

Other such statements include without limitation risks and uncertainties relating to our financial results and
our ability to (i) continue to rely on our customers and other third parties to provide additional products and
services that create a demand for our products and services, (i) conduct our business in foreign countries,

(iii) adapt and integrate new technologies into our products, (iv) develop software without any errors or defects,
(v) protect our intellectual property rights, (vi) implement our business strategy, (vii) realize backlog,

(viii) compete with small business competitors, (ix) effectively manage our counter party risks, and (x) achieve
continued revenue growth in the foreseeable future in certain of our business lines. This list should not be
considered exhaustive.

These forward-looking statements relate to our plans, objectives and expectations for future operations. We
base these statements on our beliefs as well as assumptions made using information currently available to us.
In light of the risks and uncertainties inherent in all projected operational matters, the inclusion of
forward-looking statements in this document should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other
person that our objectives or plans will be achieved or that any of our operating expectations will be realized.
Revenues, results of operations, and other matters are difficult to forecast and could differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as a result of
factors discussed in “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations”, the matters discussed in “Risk Factors Affecting Our Business and Future Results”, which are
included in Item 1A, and those factors discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K including,
changes in economic conditions, technology and the market in general, and our ability to adapt our products
and services to these changes. We undertake no obligation to release publicly the results of any future
revisions we make to forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to
reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. We caution you not to put undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements.

ltem 1.Business

Overview

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. develops and applies highly reliable wireless data communications
technology, with emphasis on text messaging, location-based services including enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) for
wireless carriers and Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) service providers, and secure satellite-based
communication solutions for government customers.

We are a Maryland corporation founded in 1987 with headquarters at 275 West Street, Annapolis, Maryland
21401. Our Web address is www.telecomsys.com. The information contained on our W=b site does not
constitute part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All of our filings with the Securities a1d Exchange
Commission are available through a link on our website. The terms “TCS", "we”, “us” and “our” as used in this
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Annual Report on Form 10-K refer to TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries as a combined
entity, except where it is made clear that such terms mean only TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Our business is conducted through two operating segments, Commercial (46% of 2008 revenue) and
Government (54% of 2008 revenue). See discussion of segment reporting in Note 20 to the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional
segment information.

Commercial Segment: Our carrier services and systems products enable wireless carriers to deliver short
text messages, location information, internet content, and other enhanced communication services to and from
wireless phones. We provide E9-1-1 services, commercial location-based services, and inter-carrier text
message distribution services on a hosted, or service bureau basis, that is, customers use our software
functionality through connections to and from our network operations centers, paying us monthly fees based
on the number of subscribers, cell sites, call center circuits, or message volume. We provide hosted services
under contracts with wireless carrier networks, as well as VolP service providers. We earn subscriber revenue
through wireless applications including our navigation and traffic application which are available via many
wireless carriers. We earn carrier software-based revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and
customization fees and maintenance fees. Pricing is generally based on the volume of capacity purchased
from us by the carrier. As of December 31, 2008, we had deployed 108 of our software systems in wireless
carrier networks around the world, including those of Verizon Wireless, Telefonica and its affiliate Vivo, and
Hutchison Whampoa's "3" brand third generation networks.

Government Segment: Since our founding in 1987 we have provided communication systems integration,
information technology services, and software solutions to the U.S. Department of Defense and other
government customners. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities, and resell access to
satellite airtime (known as space segment.) We design, furnish, install and operate wireless and data network
communication systems, including our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems which incorporate high
speed, satellite, and internet protocol technology. More than 1,500 of our SwiftLink® deployable
communication systems are in use for security, defense, and law enforcement around the world. In 2006, we
were named one of six prime contractors on the US Army's Worldwide Satellite Systems (“WWSS”) contract
vehicle, with a ceiling value of up to $5 billion in procurements through 2011.

We currently have more than 65 patents, primarily for wireless messaging and location technology, and
more than 210 patent applications pending. During 2008, we sold one of our patents to TIP Communication
LLC netting $8.1 million, as part of settling a patent infringement suit again Research in Motion Limited. We
employ approximately 600 people.

SwiftLink®, Xypoint®, and Enabling Convergent Technologies®, are trademarks or service marks of
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. or our subsidiaries. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains
trademarks, trade names and services marks of other companies that are the property of their respective
owners.

I. Commercial Segment:

We provide software, related systems, hosted services, maintenance and related services to wireless
carriers, Voice Over IP service providers, and users of electronic map and related location-based technology,
based on our portfolio of patented intellectual property.

A. Commercial Product and Service Offerings

1. Commercial services. We own and lease network operation centers that host software for which
customers make recurring monthly usage payments. Our hosted offerings include wireless and Voice over IP
E9-1-1, and commercial location-based applications. Through wireless carriers, we sell subscriptions to
services using our client software applications such as navigation, traffic, and points of interest, sometimes in
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collaboration with owners of brand names such as Rand McNally®. Our primary commercial product offerings
include:

a. Hosted Location-Based Services, including E9-1-1. Our E9-1-1 service bureau works with wireless
carriers and local emergency services in compliance with the Federal Communication Commission
requirements. When a wireless subscriber covered by this service makes a 9-1-1 call from his or her
wireless phone, the software (1) identifies the call as an emergency call, (2) accesses the handset's
location information from the wireless network, (3) routes the call to the appropriate public safety
jurisdiction, (4) translates the information into a dispatcher-friendly format, and (5) transmits the data to the
local emergency service call center. Our E9-1-1 service operates on a platform at our network operations
center in Seattle, Washington with data center redundancy in Phoenix, Arizona. As of December 31, 2008,
we are under contract to provide E9-1-1 services to more than 40 customers including wireless carriers
Verizon and AT&T Wireless, and Voice over IP service providers including Vonage and Level 3.

b. Customer subscriptions to application-based services such as Navigation, Traffic and
Points-of-Interest. TCS' strategy is to provide wireless subscriber applications that use location-based
technology, which subscribers may select and pay recurring monthly fees. TGS has launched its real-time
traffic application downloadable mobile applications that deliver easy access to maps, directions and
directory listings for the entire United States, and its navigation applications on multiple networks.
Variations of all applications are sold under the Rand McNally® brand as well as carrier or other brands.

c. Software and system maintenance. For our installed base of systems in use by customers (see
system descriptions below), we provide ongoing operational support, including administration of system
components, system optimization and configuration management. Maintenance services include tracking
customer support issues, trouble shooting, and developing and installing maintenance releases. We
typically provide maintenance services for an annual fee paid in advance, which is priced based on the
cumulative license fees we have billed for the systems being supported.

d. Professional services involving electronic map technology. We provide custom software
development and professional services to customers engaged in telematics (the use of Global Positioning
System technology integrated with computers and mobile communications technology in automotive
navigation systems). Customers include DENSO Corporation of Japan, and services include
points-of-interest applications, and compilation and maintenance of geographic information databases used
in vehicle navigation systems for products including Toyota, Lexus, Land Rover and Hyundai brands.

2. Commercial Licensed Software-based Systems: We design and develop software products for
wireless carrier and enterprise networks that enable the delivery of secure and personalized content, services,
and fransactions to wireless devices. We design our software using industry standards for easy
implementation, customization, and interoperability with other network components. Most of our commercial
software is designed and delivered together with third-party software and related hardware, which is integrated
into new and existing networks by our engineers. Our primary commercial software-based system offerings
include:

a. Xypoint® Location Platform (XLP) and Applications for Location-based Services: Our Xypoint®
Location Platform system interacts with wireless network to extract location information (the *X/Y"
coordinates) of a user’s device. In order to determine a user's location with sufficient precision for
U.S. public safety compliance and for commercial location-based applications, our technology interacts with
networks that have incorporated Assisted GPS systems that use Global Positioning System (GPS) chips in
user handsets; it can also work with network triangulation software which some carriers have added to cell
towers and switches in the network. We have been a leader in developing the location platform standard
called Secure User Plane for Location (SUPL) and have incorporated the technology in our product. Our
platform also provides privacy controls so that the wireless device user controls access to the user’s
location information. The “X/Y” information extracted from networks by our XLP is used by application
software including ES-1-1, driving navigation directions, identification of points of interest locations near the
end user (such as gas stations, restaurants, or hotels), and locating other network subscribers near the
user’s current position.
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b. Short Message Service Center and Wireless Intelligent Gateway. Our Short Message Service
Center software enables users to send and receive text or data messages to and from wireless devices.
The Wireless Intelligent Gateway is a portal for two-way data communication between users of wireless
networks and the Internet. The Gateway allows users to customize the services they receive on wireless
devices by setting up a user profile through a single Internet-based procedure. Wireless carriers can access
these user profiles and usage data to gain a better understanding of customer behavior. The Wireless
Intelligent Gateway allows additional wireless applications to be added as desired, as well as
personalization, instant messaging and spam-blocking capabilities that can be independently customized
by the end-user. It can interoperate with our location-based service platform and applications.

B. Commercial Market Opportunities and Strategy

We plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through
deployment in customer networks or through hosted and subscription business models. Our development
investment is focused on the delivery of Internet content, proprietary third-party content, short messages,
location information, corporate network data and other enhanced data-communication services to and from
wireless devices. The following trends are driving demand for our products and services:

Growth in Wireless and Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) Subscribers. The use of wireless
communications has increased significantly in recent years, driven by expanded wireless network
coverage, upgraded high-speed digital wireless networks, more affordable wireless communications service
plans, and higher quality and less expensive wireless devices. VoIP service offers cost advantages over
traditional wireline service. Wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions around the
world for the foreseeable future. Driving this growth is the replacement of landiine connections with wireless
connections. Some households are now using cellular phones exclusively. This is especially true for young
adults, but also true in developing countries where wireless may often be the only means of
communications.

The FCC’s E9-1-1 Mandates. \Ne are one of the two leading providers of E9-1-1 service to wireless and
VolP service providers in the U.S. The ability to call for help or communicate with family members in need
is the reason many people cite for having a wireless phone. A key to enhancing personal safety through a
cell phone is the availability of ES-1-1 wireless capabilities. In 1996, the Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) mandated the adoption of ES-1-1 technology by wireless carriers. In June 2005, the
FCC ordered providers of interconnected VolIP service to provide ES-1-1 services to all of their customers
as a standard feature of the service, rather than as an optional enhancement. The FCC requires wireless
carriers to issue quarterly reports as to their progress and compliance with FCC-mandated deployment
schedules.

Cellular Network Improvements to Third Generation Capabilities. Mobile operators are deploying
high-speed data networks based on third generation technologies that, in many cases, equal or surpass
data rates that are typically available for residential wireline users. The deployments of these high-speed
wireless data networks have made it possible for individuals and enterprises to “wireless-enable” many
services that previously required a wireline connection, such as connecting to the Internet and accessing
corporate data outside the office. Our location-based technology and applications incorporating map
graphics take advantage of these network enhancements.

Improving Wireless Device Functionality. Manufacturers continue to increase the functionality of
mobile devices including phones and personal digital assistants through higher resolution, color screens,
and increased computing capability for sophisticated applications. These devices enable the user to take
advantage of the high-speed data networks for Internet and data usage. Broad adoption of location-based
services (LBS) has required, among other things, handsets incorporating components for interoperation
with Global Positioning System satellites and with LBS network components that we have developed and
provide. A growing number of handheld wireless device models contain Global Positioning System (GPS)
chipsets which interoperate with our network platforms and applications.

Growing Use of Commercial Location-Based Wireless Services (LBS). A driver of wireless
communication subscriber revenue growth is the delivery of timely, highly specialized, interactive and
location-specific information. Technology incorporated in a growing number of networks and handsets now
enables
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determination of the handset’s location with sufficient precision to allow useful applications beyond public
safety’'s E9-1-1. Wireless users benefit from the ability to receive highly customized location-specific
information in response to their queries or via targeted opt-in content delivered to the wireless device.
Enterprises benefit from wireless location technology by utilizing routing and tracking applications for their
mobile field forces. Our software provides wireless location solutions to mobile operators today through our
Xypoint® Location Platform (XLP.) This technology is being used, via interconnection with XLP systems
hosted in our network operations, by MetroPCS and Ntelos in the U.S., Bell Mobility in the U.S. and
Canada, Centennial Puerto Rico in Puerto Rico, and lusacell in Mexico. Our XLP in-network system
customers include Alltel (now part of Verizon Wireless), Hutchison Whampoa's “3*™ networks, and
Telefonica’s Vivo network in Brazil. We are deploying hosting infrastructure in Mumbai, India to serve Tata
Teleservices and other carriers in India with location data and downloadable navigation application
software.

Growing Use of Short Messaging and Internet Applications. The number of short messaging
services (SMS) users and messages per individual are projected to continue to increase significantly.
Mobile operators in the United States are experiencing rapid SMS traffic growth, according to statistics from
mobile operators. The Internet and internal corporate data networks, or intranets, have emerged as global
communications channels that allow users to share information and conduct business transactions
electronically. We provide solutions for mobile operators to receive and route e-mail and SMS messages
through our Short Message Service Center and Wireless Intelligent Gateway systems.

The key elements of our commercial strategy are to:

« Focus our Software and Integration Resources on Evolving Carrier Network Capabilities. Mobile
operators and the federal government increasingly seek integrated solutions that can harness both
messaging capabilities of networks and location information of end-users. We are well positioned to
address the evolving integration needs of our commercial and government clients through our
demonstrated expertise in both messaging and location determination. Mobile operators have made large
capital expenditure investments in infrastructure for wireless data and location determination
technologies. While originally envisioned as separate technologies, messaging and location
determination technologies can be integrated to provide value-added services and applications for the
operators’ end-users.

» Expand Our Sales and Marketing Relationships. We are developing relationships with communication
infrastructure providers in order to expand our sales channels for our carrier software products and
services. We have historically leveraged our strategic relationships with original equipment
manufacturers to market our Commercial Segment products to wireless carriers worldwide. We have long
standing relationships with Qualcomm Incorporated and its subsidiary SnapTrack Inc., including the
BREW lLocate Signature Solution. We are adding partnerships for our location technologies, including a
marketing alliance in China established in January 2009.

= Grow Our Wireless Carrier and Voice Over IP Customer Base. \We now serve or are under contract
with more than 40 wireless carrier networks and VolIP service providers in 16 countries. We intend to
expand our domestic and international carrier base by capitalizing on our relationships with original
equipment manufacturers and establish new distribution partnerships and by expanding our own sales
and marketing initiatives. We will continue to develop network software for wireless carriers that operate
on all major types of networks.

* Leverage Our Expertise in Accessing Information Stored Inside Wireless Networks. We will
continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology, including Signaling System 7 and
Internet Protocol standards, to unlock valuable information such as user location, device on/off status,
and billing and transaction records that reside inside wireless networks and are difficult to retrieve and
utilize. Using this information, we intend to expand the range of capabilities that wireless data technology
can accomplish for our customers.

* Develop and Enhance Our Technology. We will continue to invest in our underlying technology and to
capitalize on our expertise to meet the growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications. As of
January 1, 2009, our staff included approximately 300 personnel with technical expertise in wireless
network, client software development, hosted wireless operations, satellite-based communication
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technology and integrated network solutions. We also have research and development relationships with
wireless handset manufacturers, wireless carriers, and content and electronic commerce providers. Our
Xypoint® platform architecture efficiently integrates our presence, location, call control and messaging
technology, resulting in reduced costs, increased reliability, more efficient deployments, compatibility with
our existing products and a migration path to third-generation services.

* Pursue Select Acquisitions. We intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies
and technologies in order to increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products,
services and customer base.

Il. Government Segment:

We provide secure, deployable communication systems, and engineering and technical services, with
emphasis on satellite-based communication technology, to agencies of the U.S. Departments of Defense
(DoD), State, Justice, Homeland Security, as well as the City of Baltimore and other government customers.

A. Government Products and Services

1. Government Services. We enter into fee-for-service contracts under which revenue is generated based
on contract labor billing rates or based on fixed fees for deliverables. These services, typically under multi-year
contracts or contract vehicles, include:

a. Network Operation and Telecom Expense Management Support. \We design, install, and operate
data networks that integrate computing and communications, including systems that provide
communications via both satellite and terrestrial links. We can provide complete network instaliation
services from cabling infrastructure to complex communications system components. We also provide
ongoing network operation and management support services including telecom expense management
under multi-year contracts with government customers.

b. Secure Satellite Teleport Data Landing and Transmission Services. We own and operate a
high-speed satellite communications teleports in Manassas, Virginia that are connected to the public
switched telephone network. These facilities provide transport services for Internet Protocol (IP)-based
media content consisting of Voice over IP (VoIP), Internet, video, and messaging data using Very Small
Aperture Terminal (VSAT) satellite technology as part of our communication solutions for our customers.
We purchase space segment and resell it to customers using our facilities.

¢. Maintenance Services. We offer basic and extended maintenance services related to our SwiftLink®
products and customized deployable communication systems.

2. Government Systems. We have designed and developed our SwiftLink® product line a series of
ruggedized, wireless and satellite-based secure communication systems, which can be rapidly deployed in
remote areas where other means of reliable communications may not be available. SwiftLink® products
provide secure voice, video and data communications for multiple personnel. All of our SwiftLink® systems can
be deployed by a single person in less than ten minutes, creating critical communication channels from any
location around the world. Uses include critical communications for DoD warfighters and command
headquarters, emergency response, news reporting, public safety, drilling and mining operations, field surveys
and other activities that require remote capabilities for video and data transmission. Integration work which
typically accompanies customer purchases of our secure deployable systems is reported together with the
system sales revenue. The Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat satellite constellation,
which enables lower cost internet protocol traffic with broader band capability, expands our opportunity for
SwiftLink® sales. More importantly, our deployable VSAT multi-band terminals provide access to a wide array
of commercial and military satellites that make broadband capabilities available on a global basis. In addition,
our deployable broadband wireless systems provide additional extensions of secure wireless communications
services for up to 30 miles from a Switlink® point of presence.
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B. Government Market Opportunities and Strategy

We plan to continue to provide communication systems integration, information technology services,
software solutions fo the U.S. Department of Defense, and other government customers, in addition to
operating secure satellite teleport facilities and reselling access to satellite airtime. Our development and
business growth is focused on continuity of operations, field service operations and increased satellite
managed bandwidth services. The following trends are driving demand for our products and services:

Expanded Need for Secure, Interoperable Deployable Communication Solutions. In recognition of the
military imperative of enabling secure, broadband access to data for missions in disparate, remote locations,
the US Army awarded the WWSS 5-year procurement contract vehicle to six prime contractors, including
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. in the third quarter of 2008, with a ceiling value of up to $5 billion in
procurements through 2011. This procurement encompasses systems like our SwiftLink® family of
deliverables, and during 2008 we generated significant revenue under WWSS, including fulfillment of orders
for equipment under three WWSS programs: MiTT (Military Transition Team); WPPL (Wireless Point-to-point
Link, and SNAP (Secure and Non-secure IP Network Access Point) systems. We are continuing to enhance
our deployable communication systems product line to take advantage of the evolving environment, including
the benefits of Very Small Aperture Terminal (VSAT) satellite communications architectures deployable in
multiple aperture sizes from 0.45 meter man pack terminals to 2.4 meters where desirable and the use of
Inmarsat Broadband Global Area Network enhancements to our satellite services.

Growing Use of Secure Wireless Communications and Location Technology for Defense,
Intelligence and Homeland Security. Wireless communications and location technology are key initiatives
within the federal government for both security and supply-chain management. Wireless communications in
emergencies are of paramount importance, as emergency personnel need fo be able to communicate and
share information across agencies and departments where wireline systems may be unavailable. We believe
that our expertise in the areas of wireless E9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure satellite
communications can be leveraged fo provide the needed wireless infrastructure for the U.S. Departments of
Homeland Security and Defense and we are currently pursuing opportunities to provide such products and
services. Our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems are also increasingly used by military and other
government agencies around the globe for communications in times of emergencies. SwiftLink® is designed to
provide secure voice and data communications through encrypted satellite links.

Government Outsourcing of Network and Telecom Technical Functions. Federal agencies, as well as
state and local governments, are increasingly contracting with specialist teams for functions such as network
management, and for long-term projects such as software development and systems integration. Since the
founding of our Company, we have built relationships with federal agencies, as well as the State of Maryland
and the City of Baltimore. Since early 2004, we have made it 8 management priority to aggressively expand
our base of long-term service contract engagements. We have added experienced sales personnel and
enhanced our relationships with systems integrators and specialist vendors to expand our penetration of the
government service market.

Secure Teleport and Integration Capabilities along with Deployable Systems as a Bundled
Offering. Government customers can benefit from single-sourcing secure communications solutions which
include a secure U.S. landing site for backhaul traffic as well as network engineering expertise and secure
remote terminals. We believe that TCS enjoys a competitive advantage, because it can offer all of these
elements from a single vendor.

Application of Commercially Proven Technology to Government Solutions. Government customers
increasingly are using commercial carrier networks. Procurement officers have expressed a preference for
solutions that incorporate proven commercial technology, rather than reliance on government research and
development funding. Our portfolio of software, patented intellectual property, and teams of wireless and
encryption specialists positions us to tap into this opportunity.
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Customers

Commercial Segment. Our commercial customers include wireless telecommunications carriers in the
United States and foreign countries, either directly or through our channel partners. We provide licensed
software-based systems, and hosted service bureau offerings to carriers around the world. Our wireless carrier
customers include Verizon Wireless (22% of total 2008 revenue from continuing operations), AT&T Wireless,
T-Mobile and the Hutchison Whampoa third generation "3” brand networks. Customers for our Voice Over 1P
E9-1-1 services include Vonage and Level 3. We provide electronic map technology solutions fo telematics
vendors including DENSO Corporation. Our sales efforts target wireless and Voice over IP service providers
around the world.

Government Segment. Our major Government Segment customers include major elements of the
U.S. Departments of Defense, Justice, Homeland Security, and State, the General Services Administration, the
City of Baltimore, and Northrop Grumman. In the aggregate, U.S. federal government entities accounted for
42% of total 2008 revenue from continuing operations.

Backlog
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, we had unfilled orders, or funded contract and total backlog, as
follows:
December 31, 2008 vs. 2007
($ in millions) 2008 2007 $ %,
Commercial Segment [ B 8011 BT 939 BI(13.8)] | (15%) ]
Government Segment 79.7 36.7 43.0 117%
| _ Total funded contract backiog | 571508 | BT130.8 1 B[ 2921 |1 22% |
Commercial Segment $ 910 $ 1034 % (12.4) (12%)
Government Segment [ 113540 [ [ [1288 ] [[2253 1 11175% |
Total backlog of orders and commitments, including
customer options $ 4450 $ 2322 % 2128 92%
Expected to be realized within next 12 months [B[116.00 T &1 846 ] 314 [ [] 37% |

Funded contract backlog represents contracts for which fiscal year funding has been appropriated by our
customers (mainly federal agencies), and for our hosted services is computed by multiplying the most recent
month’s recurring revenue times the remaining months under existing long-term agreements, which we believe
is the best available information for anticipating revenue under those agreements. Total backlog, as is typically
measured by government contractors, includes orders covering optional periods of service and/or deliverables,
but for which budgetary funding may not yet have been approved. Company backlog at any given time may be
affected by a number of factors, including the availability of funding, contracts being renewed or new contracts
being signed before existing contracts are completed. Some of our backlog could be canceled for causes such
as late delivery, poor performance and other factors. Accordingly, a comparison of backlog from period to
period is not necessarily meaningful and may not be indicative of eventual actual revenue.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our products and services through our direct sales force and through indirect channels. Our direct
sales force consists of approximately 20 professionals in the U.S. and Europe. We have also historically
leveraged our relationships with original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) to market our commercial systems
to wireless carrier customers. These indirect sales relationships inciude Alcatel Lucent, and Qualcomm. We
are also adding partnerships for our location technologies, including a marketing alliance in China established
in January 2009. During the indirect sales process, as well as during installation and maintenance, we have
extensive direct contact with prospective carrier customers.

We are pre-qualified as an approved vendor for some government contracts, and some of our products and
services are available to government customers via the General Services Administration’s Information
Technology
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Schedule 70, and the Worldwide Satellite Services (WWSS) and the Space and Naval Warfare Foreign Military
Sales (SPAWAR FMS) contract vehicles. We collaborate in sales efforts under various arrangements with
integrators. Our marketing efforts also include advertising, public relations, speaking engagements and
attending and sponsoring industry conferences.

Competition

The markets for our products and services are competitive. The adoption of industry standards may make it
easier for new market entrants to compete with us. We expect that we will continue to compete primarily on the
basis of the functionality, breadth, time to market, ease of integration, price, and quality of our products and
services, as well as our market experience and reputation. The market and competitive conditions are
continually developing. Our software products compete with many similar products provided by other
companies. It is difficult to present a meaningful comparison between our competitors and us because there is
a large variation in revenue generated by different customers, different products and services, as well as the
different combinations of products and services offered by our competitors. We cannot, therefore, quantify our
relative competitive position.

Our current and potential competitors include:

» Commercial Segment. Intrado Inc. division of West Corporation; Motorola Inc.; Siemens AG; Ericsson
LM Telephone Co.; Openwave Systems Inc.; Acision; Comverse Technology Inc.

* Government Segment. Computer Sciences Corporation; ViaSat Inc.; General Dynamics corp.; DataPath
Inc.; CACI International Inc.; Globecomm Systems, Inc.; Comtech Telecommunications, Corp.

Many of our existing and potential competitors have substantially greater financial, technical, marketing and
distribution resources than we do. Many of these companies have greater name recognition and more
established relationships with their target customers. Furthermore, these competitors may be able to adopt
more aggressive pricing policies and offer customers more attractive terms than we can. With time and capital,
it would be possible for our competitors to replicate our products and services.

We partner with vendors of precise location technology. Certain of our partners may attempt to compete
with our operating platform by developing their own transmission platform or by purchasing another mobile
location platform. The markets for commercial location and other mobile wireless applications for carriers and
enterprises are relatively new and continually developing. The convergence of wireless technologies and the
Internet is creating many initiatives to bring data and transaction capabilities to wireless devices. There is a
wide array of potential competitors in this market, including providers of competing location management
platforms, competing e-mail products, competing enterprise mobility platforms and other competing
applications for wireless devices.

Research and Development

Our success depends on a number of factors, which include, among other items, our ability to identify and
respond to emerging technological trends in our target markets, to develop and maintain competitive products,
to enhance our existing products by adding features and functionality that differentiate the products from those
of our competitors, and to bring products to market on a timely basis and at competitive prices. As of
January 1, 2009, our overall staff included approximately 300 professionals with technical expertise in wireless
network, client software development and satellite-based communication technology. Since 1996, we have
made substantial investments in wireless technology research and development, most of which has been
devoted to the development of carrier and enterprise network software products and services. We are primarily
focusing our current research and development investments in cellular location-based and electronic map
technology, including E9-1-1 technology. We actively support existing telecommunications standards and
promote new telecommunications standards in order to expand the market for wireless data. We actively
participate in wireless standards-setting organizations including the Open Mobile Alliance, and we are
represented on the Board of Directors for the E9-1-1 Institute. In 1996, we co-founded the Intelligent Network
Forum, an organization dedicated to expanding the role of intelligent networks in telecommunications. As part
of our strategy to expand the role of short messaging, we co-founded the Short Message Peer-to-Peer Forum
in 1999.
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For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, our research and development expense in
continuing operations was $16.2 million, $13.1 million, and $12.6 million, respectively.

Certain of our government customers contract with us from time to time to conduct research on
telecommunications software, equipment and systems.

Intellectual Property Rights

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark, service mark, and trade secret laws and
restrictions to establish and protect certain proprietary rights in our products and services.

We currently hold more than 65 issued patents relating to wireless text messaging, inter-carrier messaging,
number portability, GPS ephemeris data, emergency public safety data routing and electronic commerce. We
have filed more than 210 additional patent applications for certain apparatus and processes we believe we
have invented to enable key features of the location services, wireless text alerts, Short Message Service
Center, mobile-originated data and ES-1-1 network software. There is no assurance that these patent
applications will result in a patent being issued by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or other patent
offices, nor is there any guarantee that any issued patent will be valid and enforceable. Additionally, foreign
patent rights may or may not be available or pursued in any technology area for which U.S. patent applications
have been filed.

We developed our Short Message Service Center software in 1996 under our development agreement with
Alcatel Lucent. Under the development agreement, we share certain ownership rights in this software
application with Aicatel Lucent. The scope of each party’s ownership interest is subject to each party’s various
underlying ownership rights in intellectual property and also to confidential information contributed to the
applications, and is subject to challenge by either party.

As a member of various industry standard-setting forums, we have agreed to license certain of our
intellectual property to other members on fair and reasonable terms to the extent that the license is required to
develop non-infringing products under the specifications promulgated by those forums.

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, we had 585 employees, of which 573 were full-time and 12 were part-time. We
believe relations with our employees are good. None of our employees is represented by a union.

Geographical Information

During 2008, 2007, and 2006, total revenue generated from products and services of our continuing
operations in the U.S. were $211.5 million, $138.6 million, and $117.6 miilion, respectively, and total revenue
generated from products and services outside of the U.S. were $8.6 million, $5.6 million, and $7.3 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2008, 2007, and 20086, essentially all of the long-lived assets of our
continuing operations were located in the U.S.

During 2007 and 2006, total revenue generated from products and services of our discontinued Enterprise
division in the U.S. were $5.6 million and $22.1 million, respectively. All discontinued operations were divested
in 2007.

We are subject to risks related to offering our products and services in foreign countries. See the
information under the heading "Risk Factors — Because our product offerings are sold internationally, we are
subject to risks of conducting business in foreign countries” included in ltem 1A.
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item 1A.Risk Factors

You should consider carefully each of the following risks and all of the other information in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and the documents incorporated by reference herein. If any of the following risks and
uncertainties develops info actual events, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be
materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business

If wireless carriers do not continue rovide additional pro nd services to their subscribers
our business could be harmed.

If wireless carriers limit their product and service offerings or do not purchase additional products containing
our applications, our business will be harmed. Wireless carriers face implementation and support challenges in
introducing Internet-based services via wireless devices, which may slow the rate of adoption or
implementation of our products and services. Historically, wireless carriers have been relatively slow to
implement complex new services such as Internet-based services. Our future success depends upon a
continued increase in the use of wireless devices to access the Internet and upon the continued development
of wireless devices as a medium for the delivery of network-based content and services. We have no control
over the pace at which wireless carriers implement these new services. The failure of wireless carriers to
introduce and support services utilizing our products in a timely and effective manner could reduce sales of our
products and services and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, resuits of
operations or cash flows.

We may failto s ort our anticipated growth in operations which could reduc mand for our
services and materially adversely affect our revenue.

Our business strategy is based on the assumption that the market demand, the number of customers, the
amount of information they want to receive and the number of products and services we offer will all increase.
We must continue to develop and expand our systems and operations to accommodate this growth. The
expansion and adaptation of our systems operations requires substantial financial, operational and
management resources. Deployment of our Government systems has increased substantially and while we
have increased our production capabilities to satisfy the increased demand, our ability to meet production
schedules for increasing demand could adversely impact our product quality and reliability. Any failure on our
part to develop and maintain our wireless data services and government system production lines as we
experience rapid growth could significantly reduce demand for our services and materially adversely affect our
revenue. Also, if we incorrectly predict the market areas that will grow significantly, we could expend significant
resources that could have been expended on other areas that do show significant growth.

A significant portion of our contracts with the U.S. government are on a fixed price basis which
could negatively impact the Company profitability.

A material portion of the Company's annual revenues are derived from fixed-price contracts. Due to their
nature, fixed-price contracts inherently have more risk than flexibly priced contracts. Our operating margin is
adversely affected when contract costs that cannot be billed to customers are incurred. While management
uses its best judgment to estimate costs associated with fixed-price contracts, future events could result in
either upward or downward adjustments to those estimates which could negatively impact our profitability. The
increase in contract costs can occur if estimates to complete increase or if initial estimates used for calculating
the contract cost were incorrect. The cost estimation process requires significant judgment and expertise.
Reasons for cost growth may include unavailability and productivity of labor, the nature and complexity of the
work to be performed, the effect of change orders, the availability of materials, interruptions in our supply
chain, the effect of any delays in performance, availability and timing of funding from the customer, natural
disasters, and the inability to recover any claims included in the estimates to complete. A significant change in
cost estimates on one or more programs could have a material effect on the company's consolidated financial
position or results of operations.
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We are subject to procurement and other related laws and regulation which carry significant
penalties for non-compliance.

As a supplier to the U.S. government, we must comply with numerous regulations, including those
governing security and contracting practices. In addition, prime contracts with various agencies of the
U.S. government and subcontracts with other prime contractors are subject to numerous laws and regulations.

Failure to comply with these procurement regulations and practices could result in fines being imposed
against us or our suspension for a period of time from eligibility for bidding on, or for award of, new government
contracts. If we are disqualified as a supplier to government agencies, we would lose most, if not all, of our
U.S. government customers and revenues from sales of our products would decline significantly. Among the
potential causes for disqualification are violations of various statutes, including those related to procurement
integrity, export contral, U.S. government security regulations, employment practices, protection of the
environment, accuracy of records in the recording of costs, and foreign corruption. The government could
investigate and make inquiries of our business practices and conduct audits of contract performance and cost
accounting. Based on the results of such audits, the U.S. government could adjust our contract-related costs
and fees. Depending on the results of these audits and investigations, the government could make claims
against us, and if it were to prevail, certain incurred costs would not be recoverable by us.

Current levels of market volalility are unpreceden and adverse capital and credit market
conditions may negatively impact us.

The capital and credit markets have continued to experience extreme volatility and disruption. Historically,
we have occasionally accessed these markets to support certain business activities. In the future, we may not
be able to obtain capital market financing or credit availability on similar terms, or at all, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Changes in the U.S. and global market conditions that are beyond our control may have a material
adverse effect on us.

The U.S. and global economies are currently experiencing a period of substantial economic uncertainty with
wide-ranging effects, including the current disruption in global financial markets. Possible effects of these
economic events include those relating to U.S. government defense spending, business disruptions caused by
suppliers or subcontractors, impairment of goodwill and other long-lived assets and reduced access to capital
and credit markets. Although governments worldwide, including the U.S. government, have initiated sweeping
economic plans, we are unable to predict the impact, severity, and duration of these economic events, which
could have a material effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

We could incur substantial costs from product liability claims relating to our so re.

Our agreements with customers may require us to indemnify customers for our own acts of negligence and
non-performance. Product liability and other forms of insurance are expensive and may not be available in the
future. We cannot be sure that we will be able to maintain or obtain insurance coverage at acceptable costs or
in sufficient amounts or that our insurer will not disclaim coverage as to a future claim. A product liability or
similar claim may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

Our operating results could be adversely affected by any interruption of our data delivery services
system failure or production interruptions.

Our E9-1-1, hosted location-based services and satellite teleport services operations depend on our ability
to maintain our computer and telecommunications equipment and systems in effective working order, and to
protect our systems against damage from fire, natural disaster, power loss, telecommunications failure,
sabotage, unauthorized access to our system or similar events. Although all of our mission-critical systems and
equipment are designed with builtsin redundancy and security, any unanticipated interruption or delay in our
operations or breach of security could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

13

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009



Furthermore, any addition or expansion of our facilities to increase capacity could increase our exposure to
natural or other disasters. Our property and business interruption insurance may not be adequate to
compensate us for any losses that may occur in the event of a system failure or a breach of security.
Furthermore, insurance may not be available fo us at all or, if available, may not be available o us on
commercially reasonable terms.

Because we rely on a few key customers, our revenue may decline if we fail fo retain those
customers.

The largest customers for our product and service offerings in terms of revenue generated have been the
U.S. government, Verizon Wireless, AT&T Wireless, and Hutchison 3G. For the years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007, each of Verizon Wireless and the U.S. government accounted for 10% or more of our total
revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2006 each of Verizon Wireless, AT&T Wireless (formerly known as
Cingular Wireless), and the U.S. government accounted for 10% or more of our total revenue. We expect to
generate a significant portion of our total revenue from these customers for the foreseeable future. For the year
ended December 31, 2008, the largest customers for our Commercial Segment was Verizon Wireless and the
largest customers for our Government Segment were various U.S. Government agencies.

Our growth depends on maintaining relationships with our major customers and on developing other
customers and distribution channels. The loss of any of the customers discussed in this paragraph would have
a material adverse impact on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from sales to various agencies of the U.S.
Government which has special rights unlike other customers and exposes us to additional risks
that could have a material adverse effect on us.

Sales to various agencies of the U.S. Government accounted for approximately 42% of our total revenue
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008, all of which was attributable to our Government Segment. A
majority of our backlog as of December 31, 2008 consisted of orders from the U.S. Government. Our ability to
earn revenue from sales to the U.S. Government can be affected by numerous factors outside of our control
including:

» The U.S. Government may terminate the contracts it has with us. All of the contracts we have with the
U.S. Government are, by their terms, subject to termination by the U.S. Government either for its
convenience or in the event of a default by us. In the event of termination of a contract by the
U.S. Government, we may have little or no recourse.

» Our contracts with the U.S. Government may be terminated due to Congress failing to appropriate
funds. Our U.S. Government contracts are conditioned upon the continuing availability of Congressional
appropriations. Congress usually appropriates funds for a given program on a fiscal-year basis even
though contract performance may take more than one year.

« The U.S. Government may audit and review our costs and performance on their contracts, as well as our
accounting and general practices. The costs and prices under these contracts may be subject to
adjustment based upon the results of any audits. Future audits that result in the increase in our costs
may adversely affect our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows

Any failure by Congress to appropriate funds to any program that we participate in could materiaily delay or
terminate the program and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Because we rely on key partners to expand our marketing and sales efforts, if we fail to maintain or
expand our relationships with strategic partners and indirect distribution channels our license
revenues could decline.

We have announced strategic partnerships with Motorola and Alcatel-Lucent, and are working on additional
partnerships to provide supplemental channels for the marketing and sale of our software applications globaily.
Our growth depends on maintaining relationships with these partners and on developing other distribution
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channels. The loss of any of these partners would have a material adverse impact on our business, financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

our business may n nerate sufficient cash to fund our rations, we may not be able
continue to grow our business if we are unable btain additional capital when needed.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, and our bank line of credit, coupled with the funds
anticipated to be generated from operations will be sufficient to finance our operations for at least the next
twelve months. However, unanticipated events could cause us to fall short of our capital requirements. In
addition, such unanticipated events could cause us to violate our bank line of credit covenants causing the
bank to foreclose on the line and/or opportunities may make it necessary for us to return to the public markets,
or establish new credit facilities or raise capital in private transactions in order to meet our capital
requirements. We cannot assure you that we will be able to raise additional capital in the future on terms
acceptable to us, or at all.

Our line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us fo maintain a minimum adjusted
quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio; as well as other restrictive covenants including, amaong others,
restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake actions outside the
ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute
dividends, and repurchase our stock, and minimum tangible net worth. The agreement also contains a
subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or financial
condition of our Company occur, or (i) no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any portion of
the bank credit agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders security interests in
the collateral of the bank credit agreement. If our performance does not result in compliance with any of the
restrictive covenants, or if our line of credit agreement lender seeks to exercise its rights under the subjective
acceleration clause referred to above, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there
can be no assurance that our debt holders would not exercise their rights and remedies under their
agreements with us, including declaring all outstanding debt due and payable.

We are exposed to counterparty credit risk and there can be no assurances that we will manage or
mitigate this risk effectively.

We are exposed to many different industries, counterparties, and partnership agreements, and regularly
interact with counterparties in various industries.

The insolvency or other inability of a significant counterparty or partner, including a counterparty to the
significant counterparty, to perform its obligations under an agreement or transaction, including, without
limitation, as a result of the rejection of an agreement or transaction by a counterparty in bankruptcy
proceedings, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

QOur short-term investments are subject to market fluctuations which may affect our liquidity.

Although we have not experienced any losses on our cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments,
declines in the market values of these investments in the future could have an adverse impact on our financial
condition and operating results. Historically, we have invested in AAA rated money market funds meeting
certain criteria. These investments are subject to general credit, liquidity, market, and interest rate risks, which
may be directly or indirectly impacted by the U.S. sub-prime mortgage defaults that have affected various
sectors of the financial markets causing credit and liquidity issues. If an issuer defaults on its obligations, or its
credit ratings are negatively affected by liquidity, losses or other factors, the value of our cash equivalents and
short-term investments could decline and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Our stock price, like that of many technology companies, has been and may continue to be volatile.

We expect that the market price of our Class A common stock will continue to be volatile. We are involved
in a highly visible, rapidly changing industry and stock prices in our industry and similar industries have risen
and fallen in response to a variety of factors, including:

- announcements of new wireless data communications technologies and new providers of wireless data
communications;

« announcements of the issuance of new patents;
= acquisitions of, or strategic alliances among, providers of wireless data communications;

- changes in recommendations by securities analysts regarding the results or prospects of providers of
wireless data communications;

- changes in investor perceptions of the acceptance or profitability of wireless data communications; and

- other global economic uncertainties.

Variations in quarterly operating results due to factors such as changes in demand for our products

and changes in our mix of revenues and costs may cause our Class A common stock price to
decline.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results are difficult to predict and are likely to fluctuate from
quarter-to-quarter. For example, 2008 revenues of our Government Segment were significantly higher in the
second half of the year than in the first half. In 2007, revenues were slightly higher in the second half of the
year than in the first, whereas in 2006 revenues from our Government Segment were higher in the first half of
the year than in the second half. In addition, we generally derive a significant portion of wireless carrier license
revenue in our Commercial Segment from initial license fees. The initial license fees that we receive in a
particular quarter may vary significantly. As these projects begin and end, quarterly results may vary. We
therefore believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our operating results may not be a good indication of
our future performance, and you should not rely on them to predict our future performance or the future
performance of our Class A common stock. Our quarterly revenues, expenses and operating results could vary
significantly from quarter-to-quarter. If our operating results in future quarters fall below the expectations of
market analysts and investors, the market price of our stock may fall.

Additional factors that have either caused our results to fluctuate in the past or that are likely to do so in the
future include:

+ changes in our relationships with wireless carriers, the U.S. Government or other customers;
« timing of introduction of new products and services;
= changes in pricing policies and product offerings by us or our competitors;

- changes in projected profitability of acquired assets that would require the write down of the value of the
goodwill reflected on our balance sheet.

» costs associated with advertising, marketing and promotional efforts to acquire new customers;

- capital expenditures and other costs and expenses related to improving our business, expanding
operations and adapting to new technologies and changes in consumer preferences; and

= our lengthy and unpredictable sales cycle.

Growing market acceptance of “open source” software could have a negative impact on us.

Growing market acceptance of open source software has presented both benefits and challenges to the
commercial software industry in recent years. “Open source” software is made widely available by its authors
and is licensed “as is" for a nominal fee or, in some cases, at no charge. For example, Linux is a free Unix-type
operating system, and the source code for Linux is freely available.
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We have incorporated some types of open source software into our products, allowing us to enhance
certain solutions without incurring substantial additional research and development costs. Thus far, we have
encountered no unanticipated material problems arising from our use of open source software. However, as
the use of open source software becomes more widespread, certain open source technology could become
competitive with our proprietary technology, which could cause sales of our products to decline or force us to
reduce the fees we charge for our products, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Be e our product offerings are sold internationally. we are subject to risks of conductin

business in foreign countries.

Wireless carriers in Europe, Asia, Australia, Africa and Central and South America have purchased our
products. We believe our revenue will be increasingly dependent on business in foreign countries, and we will
be subject to the social, political and economic risks of conducting business in foreign countries, including:

« inability to adapt our products and services to local business practices, customs and mobile user
preferences;

= costs of adapting our product and service offerings for foreign markets;
« inability to locate qualified local employees, partners and suppliers;
= reduced protection of intellectual property rights;

« the potential burdens of complying with a variety of U.S. and foreign laws, trade standards and regulatory
requirements, including tax laws, the regulation of wireless communications and the Internet and
uncertainty regarding liability for information retrieved and replicated in foreign countries;

« general geopolitical risks, such as political and economic instability and changes in diplomatic and trade
relations; and

= unpredictable fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Any of the foregoing risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows by diverting time and money toward addressing them or by reducing or eliminating
sales in such foreign countries.

Because several of our competitors have significantly greater resources than we do, we could lose
customers and market share.

Our business is highly competitive. Several of our potential competitors are substantially larger than we are
and have greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. In particular, larger competitors
have certain advantages over us which could cause us to lose customers and impede our ability to attract new
customers, including: larger bases of financial, technical, marketing, personnel and other resources; more
established relationships with wireless carriers; more funds to deploy products and services; and the ability to
lower prices of competitive products and services because they are selling larger volumes.

The widespread adoption of open industry standards such as the Secure User Plane for Location (SUPL)
specifications may make it easier for new market entrants and existing competitors to introduce products that
compete with our software products. Because our Commercial Segment is part of an emerging market, we
cannot identify or predict which new competitors may enter the mobile location services industry in the future.
With time and capital, it would be possible for competitors to replicate any of our products and service offerings
or develop alternative products. Additionally, the wireless communications industry continues to experience
significant consolidation which may make it more difficult for smaller companies like us to compete. Our
competitors include application developers, telecommunications equipment vendors, location determination
technology vendors and information technology consultants, and may include traditional Internet portals and
Internet infrastructure software companies. We expect that we will compete primarily on the basis of price, time
to market, functionality, quality and breadth of product and service offerings.
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These competitors could include wireless network carriers, mobile and/or wireless software companies,
wireless data services providers and secure portable communication and wireless systems integrators and
database vendors. As discussed above, many of our potential competitors have significanily greater resources
than we do. Furthermore, competitors may develop a different approach to marketing the services we provide
in which subscribers may not be required to pay for the information provided by our services. Competition
could reduce our market share or force us to lower prices to unprofitable levels.

Because we are not a small business under government size standards, we could lose business to
small-business set-aside competitors.

Federal and state procurement laws require that certain purchases be set-aside for small business
competitors, effectively giving a preference to those small businesses even if we have better products and
better prices. We have outgrown the size standards set for the many of the categories used to purchase
products of the nature that we sell. If a particular procurement is set-aside for only small business participants,
we may lose customers and revenues and may not be able to replace those sales with purchases from other
customers.

While we characterize a significant portion of our revenue as being “recurring” there is no
guarantee that we will actually achieve this revenue.

A significant portion of our revenue is generated from long-term customer contracts that pay certain fees on
a month-to-month basis. While we currently believe that these revenue streams will continue, renegotiation of
the contract terms, early termination or non-renewal of material contracts could cause our recurring revenues
to be lower than expected and any growth depends on maintaining relationships with these important
customers and on developing other customers and distribution channels.

We cannot quarantee that our estim. ntract backlog will result in actual revenue.

As of December 31, 2008, our estimated contract backlog totaled approximately $445.0 million, of which
approximately $159.8 million was funded. There can be no assurance that our backlog will result in actual
revenue in any particular period, or at all, or that any contract included in backlog will be profitable. There is a
higher degree of risk in this regard with respect to unfunded backlog. The actual receipt and timing of any
revenue is subject to various contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. The actual receipt of
revenue on contracts included in backlog may never occur or may change because a program schedule could
change, the program could be canceled, a contract could be reduced, modified or terminated early, or an
option that we had assumed would be exercised not being exercised. Further, while many of our federal
government contracts require performance over a period of years, Congress often appropriates funds for these
contracts for only one year at a time. Consequently, our contracts typically are only partially funded at any
point during their term, and all or some of the work intended to be performed under the contracts will remain
unfunded pending subsequent Congressional appropriations and the obligation of additional funds to the
contract by the procuring agency. Approximately 80% of our backlog consisted of orders from the Government
Segment. Our estimates are based on our experience under such contracts and similar contracts. However,
there can be no assurances that all, or any, of such estimated contract value will be recognized as revenue.

The loss of key personnel or any inability to attract and retain additional personnel could harm our
business.

Our future success will depend in large part on our ability to hire and retain a sufficient number of qualified
personnel, particularly in sales and marketing and research and development. If we are unable to do so, our
business could be harmed. Our future success also depends upon the continued service of our executive
officers and other key sales, engineering and technical staff. The loss of the services of our executive officers
and other key personnel could harm our operations. We maintain key person life insurance on certain of our
executive officers. We would be harmed if one or more of our officers or key employees decided to join a
competitor or if we failed to attract qualified personnel. Our ability to attract qualified personnel may be
adversely affected by a decline in the price of our Class A common stock. In the event of a decline in the price
of our

18

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION 8Y, 10-K, March 03, 2009



Class A common stock, the retention value of stock options will decline and our employees may choose not to
remain with us, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

If our subcontractors and vendors fail to perform their contractual obligations, our performance and
re ion as a prime contractor an r abili obtain future busii oul ffer.

As a prime contractor, we often rely significantly upon other companies as subcontractors to perform work
we are obligated to perform for our clients and vendors to deliver critical components. As we secure more work
under our contract vehicles such as the WWSS agreement, we expect to require an increasing level of support
from subcontractors and vendors that provide complementary and supplementary products and services to our
offerings. Depending on labor market conditions, we may not be able to identify, hire and retain sufficient
numbers of qualified employees to perform the task orders we expect to win. In such cases, we will need to
rely on subcontracts with unrelated companies. Moreover, even in favorabie labor market conditions, we
anticipate entering into more subcontracts in the future as we expand our work under our contract vehicles. We
are responsible for the work performed by our subcontractors, even though in some cases we have limited
involvement in that work. If one or more of our subcontractors fail to satisfactorily perform the agreed-upon
services on a timely basis or violate federal government contracting policies, laws or regulations, our abiiity to
perform our obligations as a prime contractor or meet our clients’ expectations may be compromised. In
extreme cases, performance or other deficiencies on the part of our subcontractors could result in a client
terminating our contract for default. A termination for default could expose us to liability, including liability for
the agency'’s costs of re-procurement, could damage our reputation and could hurt our ability to compete for
future contracts.

Qur a nting policies and metho re fundamental to how we record and report our financial
ition and results of operations, and they require management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions about matters that are inherently uncertain.

Our accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how we record and report our financial position
and results of operations. We have identified several accounting policies as being critical to the presentation of
our financial position and results of operations because they require management to make particularly
subjective or complex judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain and because of the likelihood that
materially different amounts would be recorded under different conditions or using different assumptions. For
example, the Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income
Taxes (“SFAS 109"). Under SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed based on the
difference between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted
marginal tax rate. SFAS 109 requires that the net deferred tax asset be reduced by a valuation allowance if,
based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of all of the net deferred
tax asset will not be realized. This process requires the Company’s management to make assessments
regarding the timing and probability of the ultimate tax impact. Actual income taxes could vary from these
estimates due to future changes in income tax law, significant changes in the jurisdictions in which the
Company operates, our inability to generate sufficient future taxable income or unpredicted results from the
final determination of each year’s liability by taxing authorities. These changes could have a significant impact
on the Company’s our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Industry Risks

Because the wireless data industry is a rapidly evolving market, our product and service offerings
could become obsolete unless we respond effectively and on a timely basis to rapid technological
changes.

The successful execution of our business strategy is contingent upon wireless network operators launching
and maintaining mobile location services, our ability to create new network software products and adapt our
existing network software products to rapidly changing technologies, industry standards and customer needs.
As a result of the complexities inherent in our product offerings, new technologies may require long
development and testing periods. Additionally, new products may not achieve market acceptance or our
competitors could
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develop alternative technologies that gain broader market acceptance than our products. If we are unable to
develop and introduce technologically advanced products that respond to evolving industry standards and
customer needs, or if we are unable to complete the development and introduction of these products on a
timely and cost effective basis, it could have a. material adverse effect on our business, financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

New laws and regulations that impact our industry could increase costs or reduce opportunities to earn
revenue. The wireless carriers that use our product and service offerings are subject to regulation by domestic,
and in some cases, foreign, governmental and other agencies. Regulations that affect them could increase our
costs or reduce our ability to sell our products and services. In addition, there are an increasing number of laws
and regulations pertaining to wireless telephones and the Internet under consideration in the United States and
elsewhere.

The applicability to the Internet of existing laws governing issues such as intellectual property ownership
and infringement, copyright, trademark, trade secret, taxation, obscenity, libel, employment and personal
privacy is uncertain and developing. Any new legislation or regulation, or the application or interpretation of
existing laws, may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition. Additionally, modifications to our business plans or operations to comply with changing regulations
or certain actions taken by regulatory authorities might increase our costs of providing our product and service
offerings and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

Concerns about personal privacy and commercial solicitation may limit the growth of mobile
location services and reduce demand for our pr Is and services.

In order for mobile location products and services to function properly, wireless carriers must locate their
subscribers and store information on each subscriber’s location. Alithough data regarding the location of the
wireless user resides only on the wireless carrier's systems, users may not feel comfortable with the idea that
the wireless carrier knows and can track their location. Carriers will need to obtain subscribers’ permission to
gather and use the subscribers’ personal information, or they may not be able to provide customized mobile
location services which those subscribers might otherwise desire. If subscribers view mobile location services
as an annoyance or a threat to their privacy, that could reduce demand for our products and services and have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Because many providers are not in compliance with current regulatory mandates and because our
industry is undergoing rapid technological and requlatory change, our future performance is
uncertain.

The Federal Communication Commission, or FCC, has mandated that certain location information be
provided to operators when they receive an E9-1-1 call. Phase | of the FCC's 9-1-1 mandate required
providers to be able to locate wireless E9-1-1 callers within their originating cell sector site and report their
callback number by April 1998. Phase If of the FCC mandate required providers to be able to pinpoint the
location of all E9-1-1 callers within 125 meters in 67% of all cases by October 1, 2001. Although both the
Phase | and Phase Il deadlines have passed, many providers are not currently in compliance with either phase
of the FCC’s mandate. Even so, we believe that many public safety jurisdictions are continuing to deploy
Phase | technology and when available, we believe they will deploy Phase Il technology.

Carriers’ obligations fo provide Phase | and Phase |l services are subject to request by public safety
organizations. Due to complex regulatory, funding and political issues many public safety organizations have
not yet requested this service. As a result, wireless carriers and wireless users may never exhibit sufficient
demand for our mobile location services. Technical failures, time delays or the significant costs associated with
developing or installing improved location technology could slow down or stop the deployment of our mobile
location products. If deployment of improved location technology is delayed, stopped or never occurs, market
acceptance of our products and services may be adversely affected.

In addition, we will rely on third-party providers tomanufacture and deploy devices that determine the
precise geographic location of wireless users to comply with Phase |l of the FCC mandate. The extent and
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timing of the deployment of our products and services is dependent both on public safety requests for such
service and wireless carrier's ability to certify the accuracy of and deploy the precise location technology.
Because we will rely on third-party location technology instead of developing the technology ourselves, we
have little or no influence over its improvement. If the technology never becomes precise enough to satisfy
wireless users’ needs or the FCC'’s requirements, we may not be able to increase or sustain demand for our
products and services, if at all.

Our E9-1-1 business is dependent on state and local governments and the regulatory environment
‘or Voice over Internet Pri ol (VoIP) services i veloping.

Under the FCC’s mandate, wireless carriers are required to provide E9-1-1 services only if state and local
governments request the service. As part of a state or local government's decision to request E9-1-1, they
have the authority to develop cost recovery mechanisms. However, cost recovery is no longer a condition to
wireless carriers’ obligation to deploy the service. If state and local governments do not widely request that
E9-1-1 services be provided or we become subject to significant pressures from wireless carriers with respect
to pricing of E9-1-1 services, our E9-1-1 business would be significantly harmed and future growth of our
business would be significanily reduced.

The FCC has determined that VolP services are not subject to the same regulatory scheme as traditional
wireline and wireless telephone services. If the regulatory environment for VolP services evolves in a manner
other than the way we anticipate, our ES-1-1 business would be significantly harmed and future growth of our
business would be significantly reduced. For example, many states provide statutory and regulatory immunity
from liability for wireless and wireline E9-1-1 service providers but provide no express immunities for VoIP
E9-1-1 service providers. Additionally, the regulatory scheme for wireless and wireline service providers
require those carriers to allow service providers such as us to have access to certain databases that make the
delivery of an E9-1-1 call possible. No such requirements exist for VolP service providers so carriers couid
prevent us from continuing to provide VoIP E9-1-1 service by denying us access to the required databases.

Because the industries which we serve are currently in a cycle of consolidation, the number of
customers may be reduced which could result in a loss of revenue for our business,

The telecommunications industry generally is currently undergoing a consolidation phase. Many of our
customers, specifically wireless carrier customers of our Commercial Segment, have or may become the target
of acquisitions. If the number of our customers is significantly reduced as a result of this consolidation trend, or
if the resulting companies do not utilize our product offerings, our business, financial position, results of
operations or cash flows could be materially adversely affected.

Technology Risks

Because our software may contain defects or errors, and our hardware products may incorporate
defective components, our sales could decrease if these defects or errors adversely affect our
reputation or delays shipments of our products.

The software products that we develop are complex and must meet the stringent technical requirements of
our customers. Our hardware products are equally complex and integrate a wide variety of components from
different vendors. We must quickly develop new products and product enhancements to keep pace with the
rapidly changing software and telecommunications markets in which we operate. Products as complex as ours
are likely to contain undetected errors or defects, especially when first introduced or when new versions are
released. Our products may not be error or defect free after delivery to customers, which could damage our
reputation, cause revenue losses, result in the rejection of our products or services, divert development
resources and increase service and warranty costs, each of which could have a serious harmful effect on our
business, financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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If we are unable to inteqrate our products with wireless service providers’ systems we may lose
sales to competitors.

Our products operate with wireless carriers’ systems, various wireless devices and, in the case of our
E9-1-1 offering, with mobile telephone switches and VolP service provider systems. If we are unable to
continue to design our software to operate with these systems and devices, we may lose sales to competitors.
Mobile telephone switches and wireless devices can be manufactured according to many different standards
and may have different variations within each standard. Combining our products with each type of switch,
device or VolP system requires a specialized interface and extensive testing. If as a result of technology
enhancements or upgrades to carrier and VolP provider systems our products can no longer operate with such
systems, we may no longer be able to sell our products. Further, even if we successfully redesign our products
to operate with these systems, we may not gain market acceptance before our competitors.

Failure to meet our contractual obligations could adversely affect our profitability and future
prospects.

We design, develop and manufacture technologically advanced and innovative products and services
applied by our customers in a variety of environments. Problems and delays in development or delivery as a
result of issues with respect to design, technology, licensing and patent rights, labor, learning curve
assumptions, or materials and components could prevent us from achieving contractual obligations. In
addition, our products cannot be tested and proven in all situations and are otherwise subject to unforeseen
problems. Examples of unforeseen problems which could negatively affect revenue and profitability include
problems with quality, delivery of subcontractor components or services, and unplanned degradation of
product performance.

Because our systems may be vulnerable to systems failures and security risks, we may incur
significant co. rotec ainst the threat of the roblems.

We provide for the delivery of information and content to and from wireless devices in a prompt and timely
manner. Any systems failure that causes a disruption in our ability to facilitate the transmission of information
to these wireless devices could result in delays in end users receiving this information and cause us to lose
customers. Our systems could experience such failures as a result of unauthorized access by hackers,
computer viruses, hardware or software failures, power or telecommunications failures and other accidental or
intentional actions which could disrupt our systems. We may incur significant costs to prevent such systems
disruptions.

Increasingly our products will be used to create or transmit secure information and data to and from
wireless devices. For example, our software can be used to create private address lists and to provide the
precise location of an individual. To protect private information like this from security breaches, we may incur
significant costs. If a third party were able to misappropriate our proprietary information or disrupt our
operations, we could be subject to claims, litigation or other potential liabilities that could materially adversely
impact our business. Further, if an individual is unable to use our service to receive the precise location in a
health or life-and-death situation, or if our service provides the wrong information, we could be subject to
claims, litigation or other potential liabilities that could materially adversely impact our business.

The wireless data services provided by our Commercial Segment are dependent on real-time, continuous
feeds from map and traffic data vendors and others. The ability of our subscribers to receive critical location
and business information requires timely and uninterrupted connections with our wireless network carriers. Any
disruption from our satellite feeds or backup landline feeds could result in delays in our subscribers’ ability to
receive information. We cannot be sure that our systems will operate appropriately if we experience hardware
or software failure, intentional disruptions of service by third parties, an act of God or an act of war. A failure in
our systems could cause delays in transmitting data, and as a result we may lose customers or face litigation
that could involve material costs and distract management from operating our business.
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If mobile equipment manufacturers do not overcome capacity, technology and equipment
limitations, we may not be abl sell our products and services.

The wireless technology currently in use by most wireless carriers has limited bandwidth, which restricts
network capacity to deliver bandwidth-intensive applications like data services to a large number of users.
Because of capacity limitations, wireless users may not be able to connect to their network when they wish to,
and the connection is likely to be slow, especially when receiving data transmissions. Data services also may
be more expensive than users are willing to pay. To overcome these obstacles, wireless equipment
manufacturers will need to develop new technology, standards, equipment and devices that are capable of
providing higher bandwidth services at lower cost. We cannot be sure that manufacturers will be able to
develop technology and equipment that reliably delivers large quantities of data at a reasonable price. If more
capacity is not added, a sufficient market for our products and services is not likely to develop or be sustained
and sales of our products and services would decline resuiting in a material adverse effect on our business,
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

e e the market for m mobile content delive nd mobile location pr is new, our
future success is uncerfain.

The market for mobile content delivery and mobile location products and services is new and its potential is
uncertain. In order to be successful, we need wireless network operators to launch and maintain mobile
location services utilizing our products, and need corporate enterprises and individuals to purchase and use
our mobile content delivery and mobile location products and services. We cannot be sure that wireless
carriers or enterprises will accept our products or that a sufficient number of wireless users wili ultimately utilize
our products.

If wireless handsets e health and safety risk e may be subject to new requlations and
demand for our products and services may decrease.

Media reports have suggested that certain radio frequency emissions from wireless handsets may be linked
to various health concerns, including cancer, and may interfere with various electronic medical devices,
including hearing aids and pacemakers. Concerns over radio frequency emissions may have the effect of
discouraging the use of wireless handsets, which would decrease demand for our services. In recent years,
the FCC and foreign regulatory agencies have updated the guidelines and methods they use for evaluating
radio frequency emissions from radio equipment, including wireless handsets. In addition, interest groups have
requested that the FCC investigate claims that wireless technologies pose health concerns and cause
interference with airbags, hearing aids and other medical devices. There also are some safety risks associated
with the use of wireless handsets while driving. Concerns over these safety risks and the effect of any
legislation that may be adopted in response to these risks could limit our ability to market and sell our products
and services.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights or are sued by third parties for infringing
upon intellectual property rights, we may incur substantial costs.

Our success and competitive position depends in large part upon our ability to develop and maintain the
proprietary aspects of our technology. We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, trademark, service mark,
trade secret laws, confidentiality provisions and various other contractual provisions to protect our proprietary
rights, but these legal means provide only limited protection. Although a number of patents have been issued
to us and we have obtained a number of other patents as a result of our acquisitions, we cannot assure you
that our issued patents will be upheld if challenged by another party. Additionally, with respect to any patent
applications which we have filed, we cannot assure you that any patents will issue as a result of these
applications. If we fail to protect our intellectual property, we may not receive any return on the resources
expended to create the intellectual property or generate any competitive advantage based on it, and we may
be exposed to expensive litigation or risk jeopardizing our competitive position. Similarly, third parties could
claim that our future products or services infringe upon their intellectual property rights. Claims like these could
require us to enter into costly royalty arrangements or cause us to lose the right to use critical technology.
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Our ability to protect our intellectual property rights is also subject to the terms of any future government
contracts. We cannot assure you that the federal government will not demand greater intellectual property
rights or restrict our ability to disseminate intellectual property. We are also a member of standards-setting
organizations and have agreed to license some of our intellectual property to other members on fair and
reasonable terms to the extent that the license is required to develop non-infringing products.

Pursuing infringers of our patents and other intelle | property rights can be costly.

Pursuing infringers of our proprietary rights could result in significant litigation costs, and any failure to
pursue infringers could result in our competitors utilizing our technology and offering similar products,
potentially resulting in loss of a competitive advantage and decreased revenues. Despite our efforts to protect
our proprietary rights, existing patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws afford only limited protection.
In addition, the laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as do
the laws of the United States. Protecting our know-how is difficult especially after our employees or those of
our third party contract service providers end their employment or engagement. Attempts may be made to
copy or reverse-engineer aspects of our products or to obtain and use information that we regard as
proprietary. Accordingly, we may not be able to prevent the misappropriation of our technology or prevent
others from developing similar technology. Furthermore, policing the unauthorized use of our products is
difficult and expensive. Litigation may be necessary in the future to enforce our intellectual property rights or to
determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. The costs and diversion of resources could
significantly harm our business. If we fail to protect our intellectual property, we may not receive any return on
the resources expended to create the intellectual property or generate any competitive advantage based on it.

Third ies may claim we are infringing their intellectual property rights and we coul,
prevented from selling our products, or suffer significant litigation expense, even if these claims
have no merit.

QOur competitive position is driven in part by our intellectual property and other proprietary rights. Third
parties, however, may claim that we, our products, operations or any products or technology we obtain from
other parties are infringing their intellectual property rights, and we may be unaware of intellectual property
rights of others that may cover some of our assets, technology and products. From time to time we receive
letters from third parties that allege we are infringing their intellectual property and asking us to license such
intellectual property. We review the merits of each such letter, none of which has resulted in litigation as of the
date of this report. However, any litigation regarding patents, trademarks, copyrights or inteliectual property
rights, even those without merit, could be costly and time consuming, and divert our management and key
personnel from operating our business. The complexity of the technology involved and inherent uncertainty
and cost of intellectual property litigation increases our risks. If any third party has a meritorious or successful
claim that we are infringing its intellectual property rights, we may be forced to change our products or enter
into licensing arrangements with third parties, which may be costly or impractical. This also may require us to
stop selling our products as currently engineered, which could harm our competitive position. We also may be
subject to significant damages or injunctions that prevent the further development and sale of certain of our
products or services and may result in a material loss of revenue.

The security measures we have implemente cure information we collect an ore_m. e
breached, which could ¢ e us to breach agreements with our partners and expose us to potential

investigation and penalties by authorities and potential claims by persons whose information was
disclosed.

We take reasonable steps to protect the security, integrity and confidentiality of the information we collect
and store but there is no guarantee that inadvertent or unauthorized disclosure will not occur or that third
parties will not gain unauthorized access despite our efforts. If such unauthorized disclosure or access does
occur, we may be required to notify persons whose information was disclosed or accessed under existing and
proposed laws. We also may be subject to claims of breach of contract for such disclosure, investigation and
penalties by regulatory authorities and potential claims by persons whose information was disclosed.
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Risks Related to Acquisitions

Our past and future acquisitions of companies or technologies could prove difficulf fo integrate,
lisr r iness, dilute stockholder value or adversely affect operating results or the marke
rii f our Class A common stock.

We have in the past acquired a number of businesses and technologies, and we may in the future acquire
or make investments in other companies, services and technologies. Any acquisitions, strategic alliances or
investments we may pursue in the future will have a continuing, significant impact on our business, financial
condition and operating results. The value of the companies or assets that we acquire or invest in may be less
than the amount we paid if there is a decline of their position in the respective markets they serve or a decline
in general of the markets they serve. If we fail to properly evaluate and execute acquisitions and investments,
our business and prospects may be seriously harmed. To successfully complete an acquisition, we must:

- properly evaluate the technology;

« accurately forecast the financial impact of the transaction, including accounting charges and transaction
expenses;

« integrate and retain personnel;
- retain and cross-sell to acquired customers;
« combine potentially different corporate cultures; and

- effectively integrate products and services, and research and development, sales and marketing and
support operations.

If we fail to do any of these, we may suffer losses, our management may be distracted from day-to-day
operations and the market price of our Class A common stock may be materially adversely affected. In
addition, if we consummate future acquisitions using our equity securities or convertible debt, existing
stockholders may be diluted which could have a material adverse effect on the market price of our Class A
common stock.

The companies and business units we have acquired or invested in or may acquire or invest in are subject
to each of the business risks we describe in this section, and if they incur any of these risks the businesses
may not be as valuable as the amount we paid. Further, we cannot guarantee that we will realize the benefits
or strategic objectives we are seeking to obtain by acquiring or investing in these companies.

Risks Related to Our Capital Structure and Common Stock

A maijority of our Class A common stock is beneficially owned by a small number of holders, an
those holders could thereby transfer control of us to a third parfy without anyone else’s approval or
prevent a third party from acquiring us.

We have two classes of common stock: Class A common stock and Class B common stock. Holders of
Class A common stock generally have the same rights as holders of Class B common stock, except that
holders of Class A common stock have one vote per share while holders of Class B commeon stock have three
votes per share. As of January 31, 2009, Maurice B. Tosé, our President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board, beneficially owned 6,876,334 shares of our Class B common stock and
1,848,548 shares of our Class A common stock. Therefore, in the aggregate, Mr. Tosé beneficially owned
shares representing approximately 38.01% of our total voting power, assuming no conversion or exercise of
issued and outstanding convertible or exchangeable securities held by our other shareholders. Accordingly, on
this basis, Mr. Tosé can exert significant influence over us through his ability to determine the outcome of
elections of directors, amend our charter and by-laws and take other actions requiring stockholder action,
including mergers, going private transactions and other extraordinary transactions. Mr. Tosé could, without
seeking anyone else's approval, transfer voting control of us to a third party. Such a transfer could have a
material adverse effect on our stock price, and our business, operating results and financial condition.

Mr. Tosé is also able to prevent a change of control regardless of whether holders of Class A common stock
might benefit financially from such a transaction.
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Our governing corporate documents contain certain anti-takeover provisions that could prevent a
change of control that may be favorable to shareholders.

We are a Maryland corporation. Anti-takeover provisions of Maryland law and provisions contained in our
charter and by-laws could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire contro! of us, even if a change in
control would be beneficial to shareholders. These provisions include the following:

= authorization of the board of directors to issue “blank check” preferred stock;

« prohibition of cumulative voting in the election of directors;

= our classified board of directors;

« limitation of the persons who may call special meetings of stockholders;

- prohibition on stockholders acting without a meeting other than through unanimous written consent,
= supermajority voting requirement on various charter and by-law provisions; and

» establishment of advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for
proposing matters that can be acted on by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

These provisions could delay, deter or prevent a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of us,
depriving shareholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for Class A common stock. These provisions
could therefore materially adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock.

Because this report contains forward-looking statements. it may not prove to be accurate.

This report, including the documents we incorporate by reference, contains forward-looking statements and
information relating to our Company. These statements are based upon our current expectations and
assumptions that are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that would cause actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated. We generally identify forward-looking statements using words like "believe,”
“intend,” “expect,” “may,” “should,” “plan,” “project,” “contemplate,” “anticipate,” or other similar statements. We
base these statements on our beliefs as well as assumptions we made using information currently available to
us. We do not undertake to update our forward-looking statements or risk factors to reflect future events or
circumstances.

Statements in this report that are forward-looking include, but are not limited to, the following statements
that

(i) we are well positioned to address the evolving integration needs of our clients through our expertise in
messaging and location determination;

(i)) we are developing relationships with communication infrastructure providers and we intend to expand
our domestic and international carrier base;

(iii) we plan to continue to develop and sell software and engineered systems which we will deliver through
deployment in customer networks or through hosted and subscription business models and we believe that our
software is positioned for early adoption by carriers;

(iv) wireless growth is expected to continue to increase in all regions around the world for the foreseeable
future;

(v) both the number of users and messages per individual are projected to increase significantly,

{vi) we will continue to develop network software for wireless carriers that operate on all major types of
networks;

(vii) we will continue to leverage our knowledge of complex call control technology to unlock valuable
information and expand the range of capabilities that the technology can accomplish for our customers;

(viii) we will continue to invest in our underlying technology and to capitalize on our expertise to meet the
growing demand for sophisticated wireless applications;
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(ix) we intend to continue to selectively consider acquisitions of companies and technologies in order to
increase the scale and scope of our operations, market presence, products, services and customer base;

() the Broadband Global Area Network upgrade of the Inmarsat sateilite constellation expands our
opportunity for SwiftLink sales volume;

(xi) we believe our expertise in the area of wireless E9-1-1, location and messaging services, and secure
satellite communications can be leveraged into providing products and services to the Federal agencies;

(xii) we are continuing to enhance our deployable communication systems product line to take advantage of
the evolving environment of satellite communications;

(xiii) we believe that our company enjoys a competitive advantage because of its secure teleport and
integration capabilities along with deployable systems as a bundled offering;

(xiv) federal agencies, as well as state and local governments, are increasingly contracting with specialist
teams for functions such as network management, and for long-term projects such as software development
and systems integration;

(xv) we expect to continue generate significant portions of our total revenue from our largest customers;
(xvi) we expect to realize $116.0 million of backlog within the next twelve months;
(xvii) the bases on which we expect to continue to compete;

(xviii) we expect to require increasing levels of support from subcontractors and vendors and expand our
work under contract vehicles;

(xix) we believe we have sufficient capital resources to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses,
working capital and capital expenditure and debt services needs for the next twelve months;

(xx) that we believe our capitalized research and development expense will be recoverable from future
gross profits generated by the related products;

(xxi) we believe our intellectual property assets are valuable and that we may realize revenue from patent
infringement claims;

(xxii) we believe we should not incur an material liabilities from customer indemnification requests;

(xxiii) the WWSS procurement vehicle is expected to contribute to significant sales growth and that we
expect to fulfill the potential values under WWSS orders;

(xxiv) expectations about the amount of future non-cash stock compensation;
(xxv) our assumptions and expectations related to income taxes and deferred tax assets;

(xxvi) we do not expect that the adoption of new accounting standards to have a material impact on the
company's financial statements, and

(xxvii) statements about financial covenants related to our loan agreements.

This list should not be considered exhaustive.

ltem 1B.Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

ltem 2.Properties

Our principal executive office is located in Annapolis, Maryland in a 29,000 square foot facility under a
lease expiring in March 2011. We have a second 17,000 square foot facility in Annapolis, Maryland under a
lease expiring in April 2013. The Annapolis facilities are utilized for the executive and administrative offices, as
well as portions of our Commercial and Government Segments. Other leased facilities include a 49,900 square
foot facility in Seattle, Washington under a lease expiring in September 2010, an 11,000 square foot facility in
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Oakland, California under a lease expiring August 2012. During 2008, we vacated a former site and moved our
Tampa, Florida operations to 45,600 flex-space facility under a lease expiring in December 2014. We also
lease a hosting facility in Phoenix, Arizona under a lease that expires in February 2010, which is utilized by our
Commercial Segment.

In addition to the leased office space, we own a 7-acre teleport facility in Manassas, Virginia for teleport
services for our Government Segment customers.

ltem 3.Legal Proceedings

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers
and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial public offering (the
“Underwriters”): Highstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., et al., United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-8500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of
damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our Ciass A Common
Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters
agreed to allocate our Class A Common Stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers
in exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to make
additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs
allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act, and that the underwriters
violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims against us of
violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15,
2005, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs,
all issuer defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope
of the bar order set forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the
scope of the bar order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the
settlement. On December 5, 2006, the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the
District Court’s certification of the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims that would be settled in the
settlement against the underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing En Banc
with the Second Circuit on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision. On April 6, 2007, the
Second Circuit denied plaintiffs’ rehearing petition, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more
limited class in the District Court. On June 25, 2007, the District Court signed an Order terminating the
settlement. On November 13, 2007, the issuer defendants in certain designated “focus cases” filed a motion to
dismiss the second consolidated amended class action complaints that were filed in those cases. On
March 26, 2008, the District Court issued an Opinion and Order denying, in large part, the motions to dismiss
the amended complaints in the “focus cases.” We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the matter is
resolved. We have purchased Directors and Officers insurance policy which we believe should cover any
potential liability that may result from these claims, but can provide no assurance that any or all of the costs of
the litigation will ultimately be covered by the insurance. No reserve has been created for this matter. More
than 300 other companies have been named in nearly identical lawsduits that have been filed by some of the
same law firms that represent the plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us.

On July 12, 2006, we filed suit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against
Mobile 365 (now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement
related to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only
Experience (“the ‘748 patent”), issued to the Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan
Americas, and, during the second quarter of 2007, we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365
infringed the claims of our patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $10 million
for past damages and a 12% rovyalty. The jury also found Sybase 365's infringement willful and upheld the
validity of the patent. After the jury verdict, both parties filed post-trial motions. The court denied Sybase 365's
post-trial motion for a new trial or a judgment in its favor, granted our motion for a permanent injunction
prohibiting any further infringement by Sybase 365, but stayed the injunction pending the outcome of any
appeal that may be filed, reduced the jury verdict damages award by $2.2 million and vacated the jury finding
of willful infringement. We expect that Sybase 365 will appeal from the final judgment of the district court to
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. In the first quarter of 2008, Sybase 365 filed a request for
reexamination of the '748 patent
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claiming that the patent is invalid. In the second quarter of 2008, the United States Patent and Trademark
Office granted the request and began the requested reexamination of the '748 patent. There can be no
assurances to what extent the matter will continue to be successful, if at all. Additionally, we could become
subject to counterclaims or further challenges to the validity of the '748 patent. To date, the Company has not
received or recorded any amounts related to this jury award.

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material fegal
proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of our business.

Item 4.Submission of Matters Vote of Security Holders

None.

Partli
ltem 5.Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Our Class A Common Stock has been traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “TSYS"
since our initial public offering on August 8, 2000. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the
high and low closing prices for our Class A Common Stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market:

High Low

2009 ; (1T T 1]
First Quarter 2009 (through February 20, 2009) $ 9.93 $ 7.01
2008 T I L]
First Quarter 2008 $ 3.98 $ 2.7
ISecond Quarter 2008 B 1547 ] $]3.08 ]
Third Quarter 2008 $ 875 $ 419
Fourth Quarter 2008 [B[891] [B14.58 |
2007

First Quarter 2007 |

Second Quarter 2007
[Third Quarter 2007 |
Fourth Quarter 2007
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As of February 20, 2009, there were approximately 263 holders of record of our Class A Common Stock,
and there were 8 holders of record of our Class B Common Stock.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any
future earnings to fund the development, growth and operation of our business. Additionally, under the terms of
our loan arrangements, our lender’s prior written consent is required to pay cash dividends on our common

stock. We do not currently anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable
future.

Change in Securities and Use of Proceeds

In March 2006, we issued (i) $10 million of secured notes due March 10, 2009, which bore cash interest at
the rate of 14% per annum, and (i) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A
Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per share. We received net cash proceeds of approximately
$9.3 million from this transaction, which were used for general corporate purposes. In December 2008, the
holders of 1.1 million warrants issued in 2006 exercised those warrants and 1.1 million shares were issued.
The remaining 0.7 million warrants remain outstanding and expire March 2011.
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The consummation of the note purchase agreement and the issuance of notes and warrants thereunder
were conducted as a private placement made to accredited investors in a transaction exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act.

With the exception of the notes and warrants issued in March 2006, all of the other securities issued by us
in connection with these transactions have been registered under the Securities Act.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’s Class A Common
Stock with the cumulative total return of the Nasdaqg Global Market U.S. Index and a mobile data index
prepared by the Company of the following relevant publicly fraded companies in the commercial and
government sectors in which we operate: Openwave Systems, Inc.; Comtech Telecommunications Corp.;
Sybase, Inc.; Comverse Technology Inc.; Globecomm Systems Inc.; NCI Inc.; NeuStar, Inc.; Syniverse
Holdings, Inc.; and ViaSat Inc. (the "New Peer Group”)

The composition of the Mobile Data Index has been changed from last year (the “Old Peer Group”) as
follows: Comtech Telecommunications Corp. was added to the remaining companies to comprise the “New
Peer Group” because its mobile communications systems and satellite services business lines are comparable
to our Government Segment business.

The information provided is from January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2008.

This performance graph shall not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or
incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except
as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing. The stock price performance shown on the
graph below is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.
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Item B.Selected Financial Data

The table that follows presents portions of our consolidated financial statements. You should read the
following selected financial data together with our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and related
notes and with “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
the more complete financial information included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We have derived the statement
of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 and the balance sheet data as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007 from our consolidated financial statements which have been audited by Ernst &
Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, and which are included in Iltem 15 of this
Form 10-K. We have derived the statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, from our audited financial
statements which are not included in this Form 10-K. The historical results presented below are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for any future fiscal year. See “Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” As a result of implementation of SFAS 123(R) in 2006, our
non-cash stock compensation expense has been allocated to direct cost of revenue, research and
development expense, sales and marketing expense, and general and administrative expense in our
continuing operations as weli as discontinued operations.

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in millions, except share and per share data)

Statement of Operations Data: || | L] [T.1.] [0 RN
Revenue Services $ 1014 $ 88.1 $ 88.4 $ 750 % 60.2

| Systems [T T 188 [ [ [ 5641 [ [ 366 [ [ 2721 367]
Total revenue 220.2 144.2 124.9 102.2 96.9
[ Direct cost of services revenue [T 6161 | | 622 [ [ B28 [T 1T 32[]] 309]
Direct cost of systems revenue 77.3 37.9 17.9 17.7 21.2
| Total direct cost of revenue [T 71389 [ [ 9o [ [ 7041 [ [ 569 [ T 521]
Services gross profit 39.8 35.9 35.8 35.8 29.3
[_Systems gross profit I T[T e [ 187l [ [ e[ [ 155]
Total gross profit 81.3 541 54.5 45.2 44.8
[ Research and development expense| | | 16.2 | | | 134 ] [ | 1268 [ [ [ 139[ [ T 181]
Sales and marketing expense 13.7 11.9 1.7 10.5 9.0
[ General and administrative expense [ | | 28.2 | | | 193 [ | | 1701 [ 1 16011 [ 150]
Depreciation and amortization of
property and equipment 5.9 6.2 8.0 8.6 7.4
Amortization of goodwill and other
intangible assets 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 —
Total operating costs and
expenses 64.2 50.6 49.3 48.2 49.6
|_Gain on sale of patent 5 = I O I T T O A
Income/(loss) from operations 252 35 5.2 (3.0) (4.8)
[_Interest expense T el T asl T daglll ©alll G2]
Amortization of debt discount and
debt issuance expenses, including
$2,458 write-off in 2007 (0.2) (3.2) (1.4) (0.5) —
Debt conversion expense T _A7TTT HF7T1T1T 4d1rtTD A1 79l
Other (expense)/income, net 0.2 0.5 — (0.1) —
Income/(loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes 24.3 (1.0 2.0 (4.3 (15.9)
Benefit from income taxes 33.3 — — — —
Income/(loss) from continuing ! i)
_operations , 57.6 (0.3) (23.7) | (7.2 (2.6)
Loss from discontinued operations — (0.3) (23.7) (7.2) (2.6)
Net income/(loss) B 5761 8] (3] B[ CLHT B (115 B (18.5)]
Income/(loss) from continuing
operations per share $ 134 $ (0.02) % 005 $ (011 $ (0.48
|oss from discontinued operations per 1) )
share , — (0.01 (0.60) | (0.19) | (0.08)

Net income/(loss) pershare—basic $ 134 $ (003) $ (055 $ (0.30) & (0.56)

ncome/(loss) from continuing L I
operations per share ) i3 123 | B | (0.02)) $ 005 | ] (011)]| % (0.48)
Loss from discontinued operations per
share — (0.01) (0.59) (0.19) (0.08)
Net income/(loss) per share — diluted | 5 | 1.23 | 5| (0.03)] $] (054 B (03[ § | (0.56)]
43,063 41,453 39,430 38,823 33,381
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Basic shares used in computation (in
thousands)

Diluted shares used in computation (in ‘ ‘ ‘ Aj \ ] } 1 l 1 ' 1 } l } 3\ ‘ ] ] l ‘
thousands) 46,64 41,453 40,166 38,82 33,381
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As of December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(in millions)

Balance Sheet Data: L] T T I T L
Cash and cash equivalents $ 390 $ 160 $ 104 $ 93 §$ 183
\Working capital [T [ 794 [ 1350 ] [254 [ 2751 1 1 202 |
Total assets 182.0 82.1 83.6 90.6 102
Capital leases and long-term debt (including

current portion) 11.8 16.1 17.6 16.5 18.4
Total liabilities 67.7 38.2 48.6 41.5 42.9
[Total stockholders’ equity T 14142311 | 14401 | (3541 | 14841 T T 59.5 |

ltem 7.Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations addresses our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going
basis, management evaluates its estimates and judgments. Management bases its estimates and judgments
on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions. We have identified our most critical accounting policies and
estimates to be those related to the following:

Revenue Recognition. The Company records revenue from multiple element arrangements under the
guidance governed by AcSEC Statement of Position (SOP) No. 97-2 “Software Revenue Recognition”, as
modified by SOP No. 98-9 “Software Revenue Recognition, With Respect to Certain Transactions’, SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin SAB no. 104 “Revenue Recognition in Statements” and EITF Issue Number 00-21
“Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveries.” At the time of entering into each customer agreement or
arrangement, each element is identified and the revenue, cost of revenue, and gross profit for each deliverable
is recorded and presented separately as either systems or services. The sale of products and product related
solutions to customers are classified as systems revenue within the Company's Statement of Operations. This
typically is an integrated solution that may include licenses, hardware and labor to deliver the product and/or
solution per the customer's specifications. Services revenue include the elements of the contract typically
related to maintenance or other recurring services performed over an extended period. Each of these captions
represents more than 10 percent of the Company's total revenue. There is no other category of revenue
described in Rule 5-03 of Regulation S-X in which the Company is currently engaged, so that further sub
captions are not necessary at this time. The Company considered Rule 5-03 of Regulation S-X as it relates to
the labor portion of the systems revenue. The Company will continue to periodically assess the materiality of
the labor portion of systems revenue and classify the amount as services if significant.

Under the provisions of SOP 97-2, if significant customization is not required, the Company recognizes
revenue for all delivered elements of a software sale at the point when all four criteria of revenue recognition
are met and, the Company has vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOE) of fair value for all identified
undelivered elements. We sell communications systems incorporating our licensed software for enhanced
services, including text messaging and location-based services to wireless carriers. These systems are
designed to incorporate our licensed software. Systems revenues typically contain multiple elements, which
may include the product license, installation, integration, and hardware. The total arrangement fee is allocated
among each element based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the fair value of each of the elements.
Fair value is generally determined based on the price charged when the element is sold separately. In the
absence of evidence of fair value of a delivered element, revenue is allocated first to the undelivered elements
based on fair value and the residual revenue to the delivered elements. The software licenses are generally
perpetual licenses for a specified volume
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of usage, along with the purchase of annual maintenance at a specified rate. We recognize license fee
revenue when each of the following has occurred: (1) evidence of an arrangement is in place; (2) we have
delivered the software; (3) the fee is fixed or determinable; and (4) collection of the fee is probable. Software
projects that require significant customization are accounted for under the percentage-of-completion method.
We measure progress to completion using costs incurred compared to estimated total costs or labor costs
incurred compared to estimated total labor costs for contracts that have a significant component of third-party
materials costs. We recognize estimated losses under long-term contracts in their entirety upon discovery. If
we did not accurately estimate total costs to complete a contract or do not manage our contracts within the
planned budget, then future margins may be negatively affected or losses on existing contracts may need to
be recognized. Software license fees billed and not recognized as revenue are included in deferred revenue.

The Company recognizes contract revenue as billable costs are incurred and for fixed-price product
delivery contracts using the percentage-of-completion method or proportional performance method, measured
by either total labor costs or total costs incurred compared to total estimated labor costs or total costs to be
incurred in accordance with Statement of Position 81-1. We recognize estimated losses on contracts in their
entirety upon discovery. If we did not accurately estimate total labor costs or total costs to complete a contract
or do not manage our contracts within the planned budget, then our future margins may be negatively affected
or losses on existing contracts may need to be recognized.

Acquired Intangible Assets. The acquired intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives of
between five and nineteen years, based on the greater of the straight-line method or the revenue curve
method. We evaluate acquired intangible assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying values of such assets might not be recoverable. Our review of factors present and the resulting
appropriate carrying value of our acquired intangible assets are subject to judgments and estimates by
management. Future evenis such as a significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future
operating results, significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets, and significant negative
industry or economic trends could cause us to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that our acquired
intangible assets might be impaired. There have been no changes in the valuation of the Company’s acquired
intangible assets for the current period. The expense recognized in 2008, 2007, and 2006 relates to the
intangible assets acquired with the 2004 acquisition of assets from Kivera Inc., including customer lists,
customer contracts, trademarks, and patents.

Impairment of Goodwill. The Company performs an annual analysis of our goodwill for impairment in
accordance with SFAS 142, “Goodwill and other Intangible Assets”. The analysis of goodwill includes, among
other factors, estimating future cash flows to be received from the assets. At December 31, 2008, goodwili was
$1.8 million and we determined that the fair value of our goodwill exceeded the carrying value. Material
differences in our assumptions and valuations in the future could result in a future impairment loss.

Stock Compensation Expense. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS 123(R), using the modified prospective transition method. Under the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS 123(R), we estimate the fair value of our employee stock awards at the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which requires the use of certain subjective assumptions. The most
significant of these assumptions are our estimates of expected volatility of the market price of our stock and
the expected term of the stock award. We have determined that historical volatility is the best predictor of
expected volatility and the expected term of our awards was determined taking into consideration the vesting
period of the award, the contractual term and our historical experience of employee stock option exercise
behavior. We review our valuation assumptions at each grant date and, as a result, we could change our
assumptions used to value employee stock-based awards granted in future periods. In addition, we are
required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate and only recognize expense for those awards expected to
vest. If our actual forfeiture rate were materially different from our estimate, the stock-based compensation
expense would be different from what we have recorded in the current period. SFAS 123(R) requires that
employee stock-based compensation costs be recognized over the vesting period of the award and we have
elected the straight-line method as the basis for recording our expense.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for under the provisions of SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes’. We use the asset and liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes. We assess the
likelihood
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that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income. Significant management judgment is
required in determining any valuation allowance recorded against the net deferred tax assets. Our evaluation
of the realizability of our deferred tax assets is inherently subjective and is based on our analysis and
weighting of various positive and negative evidence available to us. This evaluation includes estimates and
assumptions about a number of market, execution and economic variables. it is possible that actual resuits
may differ from assumptions and require adjustments to allowances. On January 1, 2007, the Company
adopted the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes” (FIN 48) which
prescribes a minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition
and measurement of a tax position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting interim periods, disclosure and transition. If a tax position does
not meet the more-likely-than-not initial recognition threshold, no benefit is recorded in the financial
statements.

Overview and Recent Developments

We operate two business segments: (i) our Commercial Segment, which consists principally of enhanced
communication services to and from wireless phones, location application software, our E9-1-1 application and
other hosted services for wireless carriers and Voice Over IP service providers, and (i) our Government
Segment, which includes the design, development and deployment of information processing and
communication systems, mainly satellite-based, and related services to government agencies.

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations provides
information that our management believes to be necessary to achieve a clear understanding of our financial
statements and results of operations.

Our management monitors and analyzes a number of performance indicators in order to manage our
business and evaluate our financial and operating performance. Those indicators include:

- Revenue and gross profit. We derive revenue from the sales of systems and services inciuding recurring
monthly service and subscriber fees, maintenance fees, software licenses and related service fees for
the design, development, and deployment of software and communication systems, and products and
services derived from the delivery of information processing and communication systems to
governmental agencies.

- Gross profit represents revenue minus direct cost of revenue, including certain non-cash costs. The
major items comprising our cost of revenue are compensation and benefits, third-party hardware and
software, amortization of software development costs, non-cash stock-based compensation, and
overhead expenses. The costs of hardware and third-party software are primarily associated with the
delivery of systems, and fluctuate from period to period as a result of the relative volume, mix of projects,
level of service support required and the complexity of customized products and services delivered.
Amortization of software development costs, including acquired technology, is associated with the
recognition of systems revenue from our Commercial Segment.

- Operating expenses. Our operating expenses are primarily compensation and benefits, professional fees,
facility costs, marketing and sales-related expenses, and travel costs as well as certain non-cash
expenses such as non-cash stock compensation expense, depreciation and amortization of property and
equipment, and amortization of acquired intangible assets.

- Liquidity and cash flows. The primary driver of our cash flows is the results of our operations. important
other sources of our liquidity are our leases secured for the purchase of equipment and potential
borrowings under our credit lines.

- Balance sheet. We view cash, working capital, and accounts receivable balances and days revenues
outstanding as important indicators of our financial health.
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Results of Operations
Revenue and Cost of Revenue

The following discussion addresses the revenue and cost of revenue for the two segments of our business.
For information regarding the results of the Enterprise assets, see Discontinued Operations — Enterprise
assets below.

Commercial Segment:

2008 vs. 2007 vs.
2007 2006
(§ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
Services revenue (Bl 644 | $(588 | B 66[] 10%[ §[69.7 [ BI©O9[[T(%h)]
Systems revenue 37.4 16.5 20.9 127% 17.2 (0.7) (4%)
Total Commercial Segment ‘ \ ’ { ‘ 5] { s . 5‘ ‘ } ‘ \ 1 7“ \ \ |
revenue 101.8 75.3 26. 35% 77.0 (1. (2%)
Direct cost of services 32.4 29.4 3.0 10% 314 (2.0) (6%
Direct cost of systems (189 T [ 1T50 1 [[39[1] 78k [ [52 [ [1(02]]]4%)
Total Commercial Segment cost of
revenue 41,3 34.4 6.9 20% 36.6 (2.2) (6%)
[Services gross profit [T 1320 | [ 1294 | [ 28111 9% | 1283 [ [T1A[][4%
Systems gross profit 28.5 11.5 17.0 148% 12.0 (0.5) (4%)
Total Commercial Segment gross ‘ ‘ I ‘ ‘ ' | 1 \ \ ‘
profit (1) $ | 60.5 $ |40.9 5]19.6 48% | % 140.3 $i 0.6 1%
Segment gross profit as a percent of
revenue 59% 54% 52%

(1) See discussion of segment reporting in Note 20 to the audited Consolidated Financial Statements
presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Commercial Services Revenue and Cost of Revenue:

Our hosted offerings include our E9-1-1 service for wireless and Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP) ES-1-1
service providers, hosted Position Determining Entity (PDE) service, and hosted Location Based Service (LBS)
applications. Revenue from these offerings primarily consists of monthly recurring service fees and is
recognized in the month earned. E9-1-1, PDE, VoIP and hosted LBS service fees are priced based on units
served during the period, such as the number of customer cell sites served, the number of connections to
Public Service Answering Points (PSAPs), or the number of customer subscribers served. Subscriber service
revenue is generated by client software applications for wireless subscribers such as Rand McNally® Traffic.
Maintenance fees on our systems and software licenses are collected in advance and recognized ratably over
the maintenance period. Unrecognized maintenance fees are included in deferred revenue. Custom software
development, implementation and maintenance services may be provided under time and materials or
fixed-fee contracts.

Our commercial services revenue increased $5.6 million or 10% in 2008 from 2007 due to growth in hosted
service customer volume and new hosted service customers and increased maintenance fees due to higher
cumulative system license sales. The 2% decrease in 2007 from 2006 was due to decreases in average fees
received per unit under pricing arrangements with some wireless E9-1-1 customers, and the loss of a mid-tier
carrier customer in the third quarter of 2006 offset by increased maintenance revenue on our installed software
base.

The direct cost of our services revenue consists primarily of compensation and benefits, network access,
data feed and circuit costs, and equipment and software maintenance. The direct cost of maintenance revenue
consists primarily of compensation and benefits expense. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the direct
cost of service revenue increased 10% over the same period in 2007 in direct relation to increase in revenues.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, the direct cost of services revenue decreased 6% compared to 2006.
During 2007, we incurred less labor and direct costs related to custom development efforts and deployment
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requirements of VolP E9-1-1 infrastructure than in 2006. While we increased the number of cell sites,
subscribers and public safety answering points (PSAPs) served, our overall circuit and data access costs were
relatively consistent year to year. For 2008, the cost of circuit and other data access costs accounted for
approximately 13% of total direct costs of commercial service revenues. The cost of circuit and other data
access costs accounted for approximately 15% and 11% of the total direct costs of our commercial service
revenues for 2007 and 2006 respectively.

Commercial services gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2008 was 8% higher than in 2007 on
higher revenue with a comparable percentage increase in labor, fringe and contractor costs. Commercial
services gross profit in 2007 was 4% higher than in 2006 based on improved operating efficiencies.

Commercial Systems Revenue and Cost of Revenue

We sell communications systems incorporating our licensed software for enhanced services, including text
messaging and location-based services to wireless carriers. These systems are designed to incorporate our
licensed software. We design our software to ensure that it is compliant with all applicable standards.
Licensing fees for our carrier software are generally a function of its volume of usage in our customers’
networks. As a carrier's subscriber base or usage increases, the carrier must purchase additional capacity
under its license agreement and we receive additional revenue. We may also realize license revenue as a
result of infringement claims that we make in enforcing our patents. In 2006, we reached a seftlement on a
patent infringement case and won a jury award of more than $10 million in another infringement case; no
revenue has been recognized on the second case pending post trial motions, appeals, and potential
settlement.

Commercial systems revenue in 2008 was 127% higher than in 2007 due to higher sales of licenses for text
messaging capacity and customer hardware upgrades. Commercial systems revenue in 2007 was A% lower
than in 2006 due mainly to lower sales of text messaging licenses.

The direct cost of commercial systems consists primarily of compensation, benefits, purchased equipment,
third-party software, travel expenses, and consulting fees as well as the amortization of both acquired and
capitalized software development costs for all reported periods. The direct cost of the license component of
systems is normally very low, and the gross profit very high since the software development efforts were
expensed in prior periods. The direct cost of systems includes amortization of software development costs of
$2.1 million, $1.5 million, and $1.3 million, respectively, in 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Our commercial systems gross profit was $28.5 million in 2008, a 148% or $17.0 million increase from
2007. Commercial systems gross profit was $11.5 million in 2007, or a 4% decrease from 2006. Systems
gross margins are higher in periods when systems revenue includes a higher proportion of software licenses
relative to third party system components and integration labor, as was the case in 2008 and 2006.
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Government Segment:

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
(§ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
Services revenue (51 368 | 51293 | B 7.6 1] 26% [ 52868 | [ 07 1] 2%
Systemns revenue 81.4 39.6 41.8 106% 19.3 20.3 105%
Total Government Segment { ‘ J 1 ‘ ‘ ( l ‘ J
revenue. 118.3 68.9 49.4 72%] 48. 20.9 44%|
Direct cost of services 29.2 22.8 6.4 28% 211 1.7 8%
Direct cost of systems 77683 [ | 1329 | | 354 [1708% [ [ 1127 [ [120.277 [[159%] |
Total Government Segment cost of
revenue 97.5 55.7 41.8 75% 33.8 21.9 65%
Bervices gross profit [T 774 1 [ 168 [ ([T W[ T 75 T1TA0[T[(13%)]
Systems gross profit 131 6.7 6.4 96% 6.7 — NM
Total Government Segment gross 1 1 ’ ‘ 1 ’ I ‘ I |
profit (1) 20.8 $ | 13.2 $| 7.6 58%| | % |14.2 51 (1.0 7%
Segment gross profit as a percent of
revenue 18% 19% 30%

(1) See discussion of segment reporting in Note 20 fo the audited Consolidated Financial Statements
presented elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. (NM = Not meaningful)

For 2008, Government Segment revenue increased 72% reflecting increases in both services and systems
revenue. Government Segment revenue in 2007 and 2006 increased 44% and 32%, respectively, reflecting
increases in both services and systems revenue. During the third quarter of 2006, we were one of six vendors
selected by the U.S. Army to provide secure satellite services and systems under a five year contract vehicle,
with a possible maximum value of up to $5 billion for the six vendors. The WWSS contract vehicle is expected
to continue to contribute significant government systems sales growth through 2011. The Company’s
Government Segment has been awarded participation as a prime or sub-contractor to provide similar
satellite-based technology under several other contract vehicles. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the
Company was awarded 6 new delivery orders and received incremental funding against two delivery orders
initially issued in 2008 under the WWSS vehicle with a total contract value of $84.5 million, of which
$61.6 million was fulfilled, resulting in 2008 revenue. The total potential value of all WWSS awards received to
date is $366.7 million of which $124 million has been funded which we currently expect to fulfill over the next
three years.

Government Services Revenue and Cost of Revenue:

Government services revenue increased to $36.9 million in 2008 from $29.3 million in 2007 and
$28.6 million in 2006. These increases were generated by new and expanded-scope contracts resulting from
increased sales emphasis on communications and information technology service work, increased revenue
generated from satellite airtime services using our teleport facilities, and maintenance and field support
associated with our systems sales. Continuing growth is expected from higher usage of our teleport -related
services and continuing incremental additions of technical outsource service personnel. System maintenance
fees are collected in advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance periods.

Direct cost of government service revenue consists of compensation, benefits and travel incurred in
delivering these services, as well as satellite space segment purchased for resale to government customers.
These costs increased as a result of the increased volume of service in all three years.

Our gross profit from government services increased to $7.7 million in 2008 from $6.5 million in 2007 and
$7.5 million in 2006. The growth in 2008 was realized from professional services, teleport usage, and
maintenance on the installed base of systems. The decline in gross profit in 2007 was due to the lower
average margins as a result of tighter average pricing in 2007 due to competition for the contracts as they were
renewed or newly won. Gross profit as a percentage of revenue decreased in all three years as a result of
lower average pricing on our mix of government customer contracts.

38

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009



Government Systems Revenue and Cost of Revenue:

We generate government systems revenue from the design, development, assembly and deployment of
information processing and communication systems, primarily deployable satellite-based communication
systems, and integration of those systems into our customer networks. These are largely variations on our
SwiftLink® product line, which are lightweight, secure, deployable communication systems, sold to units of the
U.S. Departments of State, Justice and Defense, and other government agencies. Government systems sales
more than doubled to $81.4 million in 2008 from $39.6 million in 2007, which was more than double the
$19.3 million in 2008. The increases over the last three years in systems revenues were primarily due to
increases in sales volume from the fulfillment of task orders under the WWSS 5-year contract vehicle, for
which TCS was one of six awardees in September 2006. In July 2008, TCS was named the sole awardee of a
delivery order contract with a potential value of $246 million over the next several years, under the WWSS
procurement vehicle.

The cost of our government systems revenue consists of purchased system components, compensation,
benefits, travel, and the costs related to third-party contractors that we engage. These costs have increased
over the three years presented as a direct result of the increase in volume. These equipment and third-party
costs are variable for our various types of products, and margins may fluctuate between periods based on
pricing and product mix.

Our government systems gross profit in 2008 increased 96% over 2007 primarily due to higher sales
volume under the WWSS procurement vehicle. Government systems gross profit was the same at $6.7 million
in 2007 and 2006. In 2007, the effect of lower margins was offset by an increase over 2006 volume.

Operating Expenses:

Research and Development Expense:

2007 vs.
2008 vs. 2007 2006
(8 in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
Research and development expense B 1164 | & (130 | BI3A] 1124%] & (126 | 5051 |[4%]
Percent of revenue 7% 9% 10%

Our research and development expense consists of compensation, benefits, and a proportionate share of
facilities and corporate overhead. The costs of developing software products are expensed prior to establishing
technological feasibility. Technological feasibility is established for our software products when a detailed
program design is completed. We incur research and development costs to enhance existing packaged
software products as well as to create new software products including software hosted in our network
operations center. These costs primarily include compensation and benefits as well as costs associated with
using third-party laboratory and testing resources. We expense such costs as they are incurred unless
technological feasibility has been reached and we believe that the capitalized costs will be recoverabie.

The expenses we incur relate to software applications which are being marketed to new and existing
customers on a global basis. Throughout 2008, 2007, and 2006, research and development was primarily
focused on cellular and hosted location-based applications, including Voice over IP E9-1-1, enhancements to
our hosted location-based service platform, and wireless location-based service applications. Management
continually assesses our spending on research and development to ensure resources are focused on products
that are expected to achieve the highest level of success. In 2008, 2007, and 2006, we capitalized $0.5 million,
$1.5 million, and $1.8 million, respectively, of software development costs for certain software projects in
accordance with the above policy. The capitalized costs relate to our wireless location-based software. These
costs will be amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the products’
estimated useful life, not longer than three years. Amortization is also computed using the ratio that current
revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that product (the
revenue curve method). If this revenue curve method resuits in amortization greater than the amount
computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Amortization of
software development costs is
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recorded as a direct cost of revenue. We believe that these capitalized costs will be recoverable from future
gross profits generated by these products.

Research and development expense increased 24% in 2008 from 2007, primarily since software
developers spent less time on work that was subject to capitalized expenditure accounting (discussed above),
increased Company personnel assigned to software development work, and higher variable compensation in
2008. Research and development expense increased 4% in 2007 from 2006. This increase is mainly due to
more Company personnel assigned to software development work during 2007 than in 2006.

Our research and development expenditures have yielded more than 65 patents, primarily for wireless
messaging and location technology, and more than 210 pending patent applications. We believe that the
intellectual property represented by these patents is a valuable asset that will contribute positively to our
results of operations in 2009 and beyond.

Sales and Marketing Expense:

2007 vs.
2008 vs. 2007 2006
($ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
[Sales and marketing expense (B 37 [ B9 [ B8 [115%] B 1117 | S0 [[2F!
Percent of revenue 6% % 9%

Our sales and marketing expense includes compensation and benefits, trade show expenses, travel costs,
advertising and public relations costs as well as a proportionate share of facility-related costs which are
expensed as incurred. Our marketing efforts also include speaking engagements, and attending and
sponsoring industry conferences. We sell our software products and services through our direct sales force
and through indirect channels. We have also historically leveraged our relationships with original equipment
manufacturers to market our software products to wireless carrier customers. We sell our products and
services to agencies and departments of the U.S. government primarily through direct sales professionals.
Sales and marketing costs increased 15% and 2% in 2008 and 2007, respectively, primarily as a resuit of
adding additional Government Segment sales personnel, increased public relations fees, and an increase of
approximately $0.9 million in variable compensation charges. The increase in 2007 was partially offset by
reductions in senior sales and marketing executive staff costs.

General and Adminisirative Expense:

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
($ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
[General and administrative expense [ B 1282 | & [19.3 | B89 [[46% ] B [17.0 | B12.3 [ []14%]
13% 13% 14%

Percent of revenue 3

General and administrative expense consists primarily of costs associated with management, finance,
human resources and internal information systems. These costs include compensation, benefits, professional
fees, travel, and a proportionate share of rent, utilities and other facilities costs which are expensed as
incurred. The increase in 2008 included a charge for vacating a leased facility in Tampa, Florida, earlier than
its December 2009 expiration, and variable compensation of $8 miliion related to record revenue, operating
profit, and net income for the year in accordance with formulas established for key employees at the beginning
of the year. The 14% increase in 2007 over 2006 was primarily aftributable to higher legal and advisory fees
associated with intellectual property related activity.
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Depreciation and Amortization of Property and Equipment:

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
($ in millions) 2008 2007 2006
onarty sd cupmert | | sd| k| sdl M 3| H ol bl M i H o)
_property and equipment 5. 6. (0. (5%) 8. (1.8 (23%)
Average gross cost of property and
equipment $ 504 $ 503 % 0.1 NM $ 520 § (1.7) (3%)

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment represents the period costs associated with our
investment in information technology and telecommunications equipment, software, furniture and fixtures, and
leasehold improvements. We compute depreciation and amortization using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset generally ranges from five years for
furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements to three to four years for most other types of assets including
computers, software, telephone equipment and vehicles. In 2008 and 2007, our depreciable asset base has
decreased as a result of assets purchased in previous years becoming fully depreciated.

Amoriization of Acquired Intangible Assets:

2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
($ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
[Amortization of acquired intangible assets (81047 BloW T BIJ7 TINM[ BIloMT I TINM]

The acquired intangible assets associated with the Kivera Acquisition are being amortized over their useful
lives of between five and nineteen years. The expense recognized in 2008, 2007, and 2006 relates to the
intangible assets acquired in this acquisition, including customer lists, customer contracts, trademarks, and
patents.

Interest Expense:

2008 vs. 2007 vs.
2007 2006

(§ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %

Interest expense incurred on notes
payable and under our bank
revolving credit agreement $ i 0.7 $ | 1.6 $ (0.9 (56%) $ 1158 ] %] 01

Interest expense incurred on capital
lease obligations 50% 0.3 (33%)

[Amoartization of defered financing fees | | | OZ 1 03' {1 |(01I)| | l 33]%)] 10471 ] |(O 1D| | | 51%)|

1.0

Amprﬁzation of debt. discount .
[ o e opensss | || J! | M\ HmH H(mO.% Il HZM Hm%
(0.1)
$ | 3.1 \,,$ 1-8‘ H 58%

7%

Less: capitalized interest

Total Interest and Financing ‘
Expense

3 1.1‘ $ 4.9‘ $ (3-8‘ H (781%)

Interest expense is incurred under notes payable, an equipment loan, a line of credit, and capital lease
obligations. Interest on notes, is prlmarlly at stated interest rates of between 0.25% above prime rate and
10.35% and line of credit borrowing is at the bank’s prime rate, which was 3.25% as of December 31, 2008.

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10 million secured notes with a new five year term loan payable to our
principal bank. The borrowing rate under the new term loan is the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (3.5% at
December 31, 2008) and the loan is repayable in equal monthly installments of $0.2 miilion plus interest. The
funds were used primarily to retire the March 2006 secured notes. This refinancing resulted in the $2.4 million
write-off of unamortized debt discount and debt issuance expenses in the second quarter of 2007. In March
2006, we issued $10 million of secured notes, with cash interest at the rate of 14% per annum, along with
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warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of
$2.40 per share (2006 Warrants).

In December 20086, we borrowed $5 million from Tatonka Capital under a 3 year note secured by the
accounts receivable of one customer. Effective March 28, 2008, we paid this debt in full and modified the terms
of the note to a line of credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum indebtedness of the line is
equal to the current maximum debt of $3.2 million ($1.7 million at December 31, 2008) less $0.2 million per
month for the number of full months that have expired since the effective date. The maturity date of the line of
credit is December 28, 2009. The borrowing rate is the London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 500 basis
points. The Company has not borrowed against this Tatonka line.

Our bank line of credit expires in June 2010, and our maximum line of credit is $22 million. Borrowings at
any time are limited to an amount based principally on accounts receivable ievels as defined in the amended
line of credit agreement. Our potential borrowing under the amended line of credit agreement is also reduced
by the amount of letters of credit outstanding which totaled about $2.3 million at December 31, 2008. There
were no borrowings under our bank line of credit during 2008.

Cash interest expense on notes payable was lower for the year ended December 31, 2008 due to the
lower-cost refinancing in 2007 of higher priced March 2006 debt, and lower average bank borrowings. Interest
on capital iease financing was about the same in both periods. Cash interest expense on notes payable was
slightly higher for the year ended December 31, 2007 than in 2006 mainly due to the effect of the higher priced
March 2006 debt while it was outstanding. The interest incurred on the March 2006 notes, partially offset by
reduced average principal balances on our revolving credit and other notes payable, caused our total interest
expense to be higher in 2006.

Deferred financing fees relate to the up-front expenditures at the time of contracting for notes payable and
our revolving line of credit facility, which are being amortized over the term of the note or the life of the facility.
The higher 2007 and 2006 amortization reflects fees to borrow the 2006 Notes.

The amortization of debt discount in 2007 and 2006 relates to the 2006 Warrants as well as adjustment to
the terms of warrants issued in connection with 2004 financings. The value of the 2006 Warrants was
estimated to be $2.9 million, determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which was recorded as
a debt discount and additional paid-in capital in 2004. The value of the adjustments fo the 2004 Warrants was
estimated to be $0.6 million using the Biack-Schoies option-pricing model, which was recorded as a debt
discount and additional paid-in capital in the first quarter of 2006. The total debt discount at issuance was
being amortized to interest expense over the three year life of the 2006 Notes, yielding an effective interest
rate of 15.2%. The 2006 Notes were written off with the 2007 refinancing.

Our capital lease obligations include interest at various amounts depending on the lease arrangement. Our
interest under capital leases fluctuates depending on the amount of capital lease obligations in each year, and
the interest under those leases, has remained relatively constant since 2006. The interest cost of capital lease
financings was about the same in the years ending December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006.

Our interest and financing expense decreased in 2008 over 2007 primarily as a result of retiring our March
2006 and December 2006 borrowings. Interest and financing expense increased in 2007 over 2006 due mainly
to the write-off of the amortization of debt discount and financing fees associated with the refinancing of our
March 2006 debt.

Other Income, Net:

2008 vs. 2007 vs.
2007 2006
(§ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
o reenrwensacion [ [0 [T [ [ 6l od | [Laom | s ol bl 1 [ |
Miscellaneous other (expense)/ income 0.1 0.6 (0.5) (83%) 0.1 0.5 500%
Total other income, net [ BloT B1o5[ [ [OHTTT®0%I B 1 T [ [0571 [1100%]
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For the year ended December 31, 2008, Other income, net consisted primarily of $0.7 interest income
earned on investment accounts, and $0.1 million net gain on foreign currency translation/transaction, which is
dependent on fluctuations in currency exchange rates. We record the effects of foreign currency translation on
our cash, receivables and deferred revenues that are stated in currencies other than our functional currency.
The Company also recorded a 2008 loss of $0.8 million from the decline in the fair market value of certain
securities considered to be other than temporary. The other components of other income, net, were about the
same as in periods.

Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes
(“SFAS 109”). Under SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are computed based on the difference
between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities using the enacted marginal tax
rate. Upon the adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, the estimated value of the Company’s uncertain tax
positions was a liability of $2.7 million resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not include
interest and penalties. The Company recorded the estimated value of its uncertain tax position by reducing the
value of certain tax attributes. The Company would classify any interest and penalties accrued on any
unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or
penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for year ended December 31, 2008 and the
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008. The Company does not currently anticipate that the total
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase within the next 12 months. The Company files
income tax returns in U.S. and state jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2008, open tax years in the federal and
some state jurisdictions date back to 1999, due to the taxing authorities’ ability to adjust operating loss carry
forwards.

SFAS 109 requires that the net deferred tax asset be reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the
weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion of all of the net deferred tax asset will
not be realized.

This process requires the Company’s management to make assessments regarding the timing and
probability of the ultimate tax impact. The Company records valuation allowances on deferred {ax assets if
determined it is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized. Additionally, the Company establishes
reserves for uncertain tax positions based upon our judgment regarding potential future challenges to those
positions. Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates due to future changes in income tax law,
significant changes in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates, our inability to generate sufficient future
taxable income or unpredicted results from the final determination of each year’s liability by taxing authorities.
These changes could have a significant impact on the Company's financial position.

Deferred tax assets consist primarily of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards as well as deductible
temporary differences. Prior to 2008, the Company provided a full tax valuation allowance for federal and state
deferred tax assets based on management’s evaluation that the Company’s ability to realize such assets did
not meet the criteria of “more likely than not". The Company has continuously evaluated additional facts
representing positive and negative evidence in the determination of its ability to realize the deferred tax assets.
In the year ended December 31, 2008, management has determined, as the result of cumulative income and
anticipated future taxable income, that it is now more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will be
realized in the future. Accordingly, the Company determined that it is appropriate o reverse the deferred tax
asset valuation. This has resulted in a benefit to deferred tax expense of $33.3 million for the year 2008.

Discontinued Operations:

In 2007, the Company sold its Enterprise division operations, which had previously been included in our
Commercial Segment. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations for the Enterprise assets
have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the Consclidated Financial
Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (Statement
No. 144).
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Effective January 1, 2007, the Company sold two of its three Enterprise units to strategic buyers for
common stock in the acquiring publicly traded companies valued at approximately $1 million and earn-out
arrangements. As at December 31, 2008, we wrote down the investments by $0.8 million. The Company does
not expect to receive material payments from the earn-out arrangement. During May 2007, the last Enterprise
unit was sold for $4 million in cash of which $0.2 million was in escrow and was released in June 2008, a
$1 million 18-month note which was paid in full in November 2008, and $0.2 million in equity interest.

The following table presents income statement data for the Enterprise division, currently reported as
discontinued operations. The 2005 results were previously reported as part of the results of our Commercial

Segment.
2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006

($ in millions) 2008 2007 $ % 2006 $ %
Total revenue (B[ 5561 SIEE [1100% 260 [ B[@0A[ 11(78%)]
Total gross profit — 0.8 $ (0.8) 100% 45 § (3.7 (82%)
Loss from discontinued operations,

including 2006 impairment charges of

$15.5 million i $ 1(0.3 5| 0.3 100% % 1(23.7 51 23.4 99%
Net Income/(loss):

2008 vs. 2007 vs.
2007 2006

($ in millions) 2008 2007 2006 $ %

Nopmaions [ [ora| & g MsssH Hssen% o sl gl [lrmsmm
Loss from discontinued operations

Net income/(loss) [ B (576 B |(1 30!,,,,I$i,5894 I 1,,4,,5,31|%| $ ,|(21 7DI 1$|20-4l L] 94470]

Net income/(loss) changes for each year are as a result of the discussions above.
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Liguidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes our comparative statements of cash flow:

($ in millions)

2008 2007 2006

INet cash and cash equivaients provided by (used in): T I [T 11 L
Net income/(loss) $ 576 $ (1.3 $ (21.7)

[ Less: loss from discontinued operations (TT A7 1T 031 [ [@3.9]
Income/(loss) from continuing operations 57.6 (1.0) 2.0

[ Non-cash charges [ A28 1T 1158 | {139]
Benefit from income taxes (34.0) _ —

| Net changes in working capital T 1o [ 1T 6GA] [ 29]
Operating activities of continuing operations 26.0 9.1 13.0

[ Operating activities of discontinued operations TT T 1166 1160
Net operating activities 26.0 5.5 5.0

[ Investing acfivities for continuing operations: P [T 1] L1 ] 1]
Purchases of property and equipment (3.7) (2.6) (2.8)

[ Capitalized software development costs , T [ 1T a5 [ 1 0.8]
Investing activities for continuing operations (4.2) 4.1) (4.6)

[ Investing aclivities for discontinued operations T 9l 11T 40] L1 d4]
Net investing activities (4.2) (0.1) (6.0

[_Financing activities: [T 1T L[] []
Payments on debt and leases (7.7) (16.0) (13.6)

[ Proceeds from/({finance fees related to) issuance of stock and debentures, net | | | — | | | — 1 [ [ (1.8]
Proceeds from borrowings — 10.0 16.0

[ Proceeds from exercise of warranis T T 28] T T 221 1T . -1
Proceeds from employee option exercises 6.4 4.0 0.7

[ Net financing activities from continuing operations (T[T 1 [ o217 T 1 18]
Effect of exchange rates from discontinued operations — — 0.3

Change in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations [T 1230 1T 1 65271 [ 11014]
Change in cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations — 0.4 @1

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (Bl 230 B 568 B 10]
Days revenue outstanding in accounts receivable including unbilled receivables 95 87 82

Capital resources: We have funded our operations, acquisitions, and capital expenditures primarily using
cash generated by our operations, as well as the net proceeds from capital including:

= June 2007 bank term loan borrowing of $10 million to refinance March 2006 secured notes, at a lower
coupon rate.

= March 20086 issuance of secured notes and warrants (described below) which generated net cash
proceeds of approximately $9.3 million.

» Capital leases to fund fixed asset purchases.

Sources and uses of cash; The Company’s cash and cash equivalents balance was approximately
$39.0 million at December 31, 2008, a $23.0 million increase from $16.0 million at December 31, 2007.

Operations: Cash generated by continuing operations increased to $26.0 million in 2008 from $9.1 million in

2007 due mainly to higher earnings. The cash generated by continuing operations in 2007 decreased
$9.1 million
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from $13.0 million in 2006 in due mainly to fluctuations in working capital. Discontinued operations used

$3.6 million and $8.0 million in 2007 and 20086, respectively. The operations and cash flows of the discontinued
operations have been eliminated and the Company has had no significant involvement in the operations since
the disposal transaction.

Investing activities: Fixed asset additions in 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $3.7, $2.6, and $2.8 million,
respectively. Investments made in the development of carrier software for resale which had reached the stage
of development calling for capitalization decreased by approximately $1 million in 2008 to about $0.5 million,
as more developer labor cost was expensed as research and development. The amounts capitalized in 2007
and 2006 were approximately $2.0 million each year. Discontinued operations generated $4 million from the
sale of assets in 2007 and $1 million from collection of a note in 2008. Investments were made during 2006 in
discontinued operations primarily for enhancements to the core software for resale by the mobile asset
management unit.

Financing activities: We have a $22 million revolving credit line with our principal bank through June 2010
with borrowing was available at the bank's prime rate, which was 3.25% per annum at December 31, 2008.
Borrowings at any time are limited based mainly on accounts receivable levels as defined in the line of credit
agreement. Availability under the line of credit available is also reduced by the amount of letters of credit
outstanding, which was $2.3 million at December 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2008, we had no borrowings
outstanding under our bank line of credit and had approximately $19.3 million of unused borrowing availability
under the line.

On December 28, 2006, we issued a $5 million note for a term of three years, secured by accounts
receivable of one customer to Tatonka Capital. Effective March 28, 2008, we paid the term loan in full, and
modified the terms of the note to a line of credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum
indebtedness of the line is equal to $1.7 million at December 31, 2008 less $0.2 million per month through
December 28, 2009. The borrowing rate is London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 500 basis points. As
of December 31, 2008, we had no borrowings outstanding and $1.7 million in unused borrowing availability
under the line.

In June 2007, we refinanced $10 million of our March 2006 secured notes with a with a five year note
payable to our principal bank. The borrowing rate under the new note was the bank’s prime rate plus 0.25%
per annum, (3.5% at December 31, 2008) and the note is repayable in equal monthly installments of
$0.2 million plus interest.

In March 2008, we issued (i) $10 million of secured notes due March 10, 2009, with cash interest at 14%
per annum, and (i) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at
an exercise price of $2.40 per share. Also, some warrants that we had previously issued in 2004 contained
provisions which required an adjustment in both the warrant price and the number of warrants outstanding as a
consequence of the issuance of 2006 Warrants. The resulting carrying value of the debt at issuance was
$6.5 million, net of the original discount of $3.5 million which was amortized to interest expense over its
three-year term using the effective interest method, yielding an effective interest rate of 15.2%. The remaining
unamortized debt discount and deferred debt issuance expenses of $2.4 million were written off in the second
guarter of 2007 as a result of early retirement of the March 2006 note. In December 2008, the holders of these
warrants exercised their warrants and 1.1 million shares were issued for proceeds of $2.5 million. The
remaining 0.7 million warrants remain outstanding and expire March 2011,

Our line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a minimum adjusted
quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio; as well as other restrictive covenants including, among others,
restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake actions outside the
ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute
dividends, and repurchase our stock, and minimum tangible net worth. The bank credit agreement aiso
contains a subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or
financial condition of the Company to occur, or (ii) no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any
portion of the borrowings under the agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders
security interests in the collateral of the agreement. If our performance does not resutt in compliance with any
of our
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restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be no
assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under its agreement with us, including
declaring all outstanding debt due and payable. As of December 31, 2008, we were in compliance with the
covenants related to our line of credit and term loan agreement and we believe that the Company will continue
to comply with these covenants.

We believe that we have sufficient capital resources with cash generated from operations as well as cash
on hand to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses, working capital, and capital expenditure and debt
service needs for the next twelve months. We have borrowing capacity available to us in the form of capital
leases as well as a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank which expires in June 2010. We may also
consider raising capital in the public markets as a means to meet our capital needs and to invest in our
business. Although we may need to return to the capital markets, establish new credit facilities or raise capital
in private transactions in order to meet our capital requirements, we can offer no assurances that we will be
able to access these potential sources of funds on terms acceptable to us or at all.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had standby letters of credit totaling approximately $2.3 million at year-end 2008 and $2.9 million at
year-end 2007 in support of processing credit card payments from our customers, as collateral with a vendor,
and security for office space.

Contractual Commitments

As of December 31, 2008, our most significant commitments (including interest) consisted of long-term
debt, obligations under capital leases and non-cancelable operating leases. We lease certain furniture and
computer equipment under capital leases. We lease office space and equipment under non-cancelable
operating leases. As of December 31, 2008 our commitments consisted of the following:

(§ in millions) 2009  2010-2011  2012-2013  Beyond _Total
Notes payable [Bl28(F [ 468[F% [ 1218 [ 18 [83]
Capital lease obligations 2.1 2.4 0.6 — 5.1
[Dperating leases, primarily for office space [T 1347 [ 437 ] [ 13[] TJod | [ 98!
Total contractual commitments $ 80 § 1.3 § 31§ 06 § 23.0

Related Party Transactions

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of
relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate deveiopment. Our President and Chief Executive
Officer own a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a
member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at
the sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable o
us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable to
us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions
apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may become
available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive lease at this
new development site.

em 7A litative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We have limited exposure to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates. As discussed above
under "ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —
Liquidity and Capital Resources,” we have a $22 million line of credit. A hypothetical 100 basis point adverse
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movement (increase) in the prime rate would have increased our interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2008 by approximately $0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

At December 31, 2008, we had cash and cash equivalents of $39.0 million. Cash and cash equivalents
consisted of demand deposits and money market accounts that are interest rate sensitive. However, these
investments have short maturities mitigating their sensitivity to interest rates. A hypothetical 100 basis point
adverse movement {decrease) in interest rates would have increased our net loss for 2008 by approximately
$0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows. Substantially all of the Company's cash equivalents at December 31, 2008 are money market fund
investments which are backstopped as to principal under a federal guarantee program in effect through April
2009.

Foreign Currency Risk

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we generated $8.6 million of revenue outside the U.S. A majority
of our transactions generated outside the U.S. are denominated in U.S. dollars and a change in exchange
rates would not have a material impact on our Consolidated Financiai Statements. As of December 31, 2008,
we did not have any billed or unbilled accounts receivable that would expose us to foreign currency exchange
risk. During 2008, our average receivables and deferred revenue subject to foreign currency exchange risk
were $0.1 million and $0.7 million, respectively. We recorded transaction income of approximately $0.1 million
on foreign currency denominated receivables and deferred revenue for the year ended December 31, 2008.

ltem 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements listed in ltem 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on
page F-1.

Iltem 9.Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosur

None.

Item 9A.Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation,
under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and
procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and
procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable
assurance of achieving their control objectives.

Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) were
effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Qur management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial

48

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009



reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008. Management reviewed
the results of their assessment with our Audit Commitiee. The effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included in ftem 9A of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the gquarter ended
December 31, 2008, that are materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

We have audited TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.'s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary fo permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reparting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 of
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated March 2, 2009 expressed an
ungualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 2, 2009
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Part lii

tem 10.Directors . Executive Officers, and Corpor: overnance

The information required by this ltem 10 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Board of Directors” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management’ to be included in
the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with the 2009 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, to be held on June 11, 2008 (the “Proxy Statement’). The Company’s Code of Ethics and

Whistleblower Procedures may be found at hitp://www1.telecomsys.com/investor — info/corp —
governance.cfm.

Item 11, Executive Compensation

The information required by this [tem 11 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Board of Directors” and “Executive Compensation” to be included in the Proxy Statement.

Item 12.Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
"Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” to be included in the Proxy Statement.

Item 13.Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence
The information required by this item 13 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned

“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “General Information Concerning the Board of Directors”
to be included in the Proxy Statement.

Iltem 14.Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this ltem 14 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned
“Principal Accountant Fees and Services” to be included in the Proxy Statement.
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Part IV

Item 15.Exhibits  Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1) Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in ltem 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on
page F-1.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statement schedule required by Item 15 is included in Exhibit 12 to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Exhibits
The exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits.
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Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31,
2008

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2008

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31

2008
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008. Our
audit also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2008
and 2007, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also,
in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2, 2009
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 2, 2009

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009



TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Assets , Ll | 1 [
Current assets:
| Cash and cash equivalents - 0k | 38977 B [ 15,955 |
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $285 in 2008 and $266
in 2007 61,827 20,424
[ Unbilled receivables I [ 21,797 | | | 15,229 |
Inventory 2715 5,373
| Deferred income taxes I [ 9736 | | l — |
Other current assets 3,869 5,561
| Total current assets I] [ 138921 [ | [ 62,542 |
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization of $41,268 in 2008 and $35,969 in 2007 12,391 11,209
Software development costs, net of accumulated amortization of ‘
$6,873 in 2008 and $4,783 in 2007 2,773 4,406
Acquired intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of
$656 in 2008 and $509 in 2007 562 709
[ Goodwili ‘ ] [ 1813 ] | [ 1,813 ]
Deferred income taxes 24,309 —
| Otherassets e L] [ 1190 ] | | 1,445 ]
Total assets $ 181,959 $ 82,124
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity I l 111 ] I
Current liabilities:
[ Accounts payable and accrued expenses B3 | 343458 | [ 12,459 |
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 17,243 4,915
[ Deferred revenue [ [ 4349 | | 4685 |
Current portion of capital lease obligations and notes payable 3,837 5444
| Total current liabilities I [ 59,774 1 | | 27,503 |
Capital lease obligations and notes payable, less current partion 7,913 10,857

| Stockholders’ equity: , ) | ] (11 |
Class A Common Stock; $0.01 par value:
Authorized shares — 225,000,000; issued and outstanding
shares of 38,527,234 in 2008 and 34,970,394 in 2007 385 349
Class B Common Stock; $0.01 par value:
Authorized shares — 75,000,000; issued and outstanding

shares of 6,876,334 in 2008 and 7,301,334 in 2007 69 74
Additional paid-in capital 240,559 227,987

[ Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) [ ] | 120 1 | (125) |
Accumulated deficit (126,753) (184,321)

[ Total stockholders’ equity D - [ 114272] | | | 43,964 |
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 181,959 $ 82,124

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Revenue ] (1] L] ]
Services $ 101,359 $ 88062 $ 88,380
| Systems [ [118,783 | [ [ 56,106 | [ | 36,556 |
Total revenue 220,142 144,168 124,936
Direct costs of revenue 11 ] i 1 | ]
Direct cost of services 61,594 52,161 52,540
Direct cost of systems, including amortization of software
development costs of $2,090, $1,522 and $1,273,
respectively 77,291 37,906 17,883
Total direct cost of revenue 138,885 90,067 70,423
[Services gross profit [T 136768 [ | ] 35901 [ [ 35840 |
Systems gross profit 41,492 18,200 18,673
| Total gross profit T T 81250 | | 54101 [ [ | 54513 |
Operating costs and expenses
Research and development expense [T T 6164 | T 1 13074 | [ 12,586 |
Sales and marketing expense 13,715 11,917 11,713
| _General and administrative expense T 1 28238 [ | | 19,334 ] | [ 16,959 |
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 5,865 6,200 7,956
[ Amortization of acquired intangible assets [T1 14711 |1 148 [ | | 147] |
Total operating costs and expenses 64,126 50,671 49,360
[ Gain on sale of patent [T 1T 8060 [ I 1 - |
Operating income/(loss) 25,191 3,430 5,153
Interest expense e [T @ T T d77el T 1 _(1.751]
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance expenses,
including write-off of $2,458 in 2007 (180) (3,176) (1,447)
Other income, net , [T 1 222 | || 508 | [ | 22 |
Incomel/(loss) from continuing operations before income
taxes 24,311 (1,014) 1,976
Benefit from income taxes ITT 33257 [ 1 — 7 L] — 1
Incomel(loss) from continuing operations 57,568 (1,014) 1,976
|Loss from discontinued operations ] T 7T 6] 1 123671
Net income/(loss) $ 57,568 $ (1,289) $ (21,695)
Income/(loss) per share — basic: [T [T 1] [T 1] 1
Income/(loss) per share from continuing operations $ 1.34 $ (0.02) % 0.05
LLoss per share from discontinued operations 11 T TT7T ©oH] T 1 (060)]
Net income/(loss) per share — basic $ 1.34 $ (0.03) % (0.55)
Income/(loss) per share — diluted: 11 T I 1
Income/(loss) per share from continuing operations $ 1.23 $ (0.02) % 0.05
LLoss per share from discontinued operations [T] dT T 7T ©ohl T 1 (059
Net incomel/(loss) per share-diluted $ 1.23 $ (0.03) $ (0.54)
Weighted average shares outstanding-basic [T 1 43063 ] | | 41453 [ | | 39,430 |
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 46,644 41,453 40,166

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Class A Class B Additional Other
Common Common Deferred Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Stock Stock Compensation Capital Income {Loss) Deficit Total

Falance at LS
January 1, 2006
Elimination of

deferred

compensation

upon adoption of

SFAS No. 123(R) — o 231 (231) — — —
Options exercised for]

the purchase of

209,632 shares of

Class A Common

Stock 2 — — 343 — — 345
Issuance of

212,194 shares of

Class A Common

Stock under

Employee Stock

Purchase Plan 2 — e 388 — — 390
ssuance of warrants

to purchase

1,750,000 shares

of Class A

Common Stock ] — — 3,455 — — 3,455
Surrender of 67,827

restricted shares of

Class A Common

Stock as payment

for payroll tax

withholdings (1 — — (187) — — (188)
Conversion of

510,291 shares of

Class B Cornmon

Stock to Class A

Common Stock 5 (5) — B = — —
Stock compensation

expense for

issuance of

Class A Common

Stock options for

continuing

operations — — — 2,872 — — 2,872
Stock compensation

expense for

issuance of

Class A Common

Stock options for

discontinued

14 |5

e | b

eshls | om0z |

e b | voraog)| s | anoea |

__operations — — — 504 — — 504
Vesting of employee
stock options — — — 244 —_ —_ 244

\Valuation adjustment
to stock options
issued to
non-employees for
service — -1l — 76 = b 76

Foreign currency
translation
adjustment — — —

Netlossfor2006 | [ | [ 1] | = | — 1] [ —]
Balance at
December 31,

2006 $ 322§ 7% % —  § 217738 — & (183,032) § 35,105
Options exercised for]
the purchase of

1,347,301 shares

of Class A

Common Stock 14 — - 3,461 — — 3,475
Issuance of

173,833 shares of

Class A Common

Stock under

Employee Stock

Purchase Plan 2 — — 541 — — 543
Exercise of warrants 9 — — 2,208 o — 2,21
to purchase
886,787 shares of
Class A Common

— 40
[ (21.695) [ [ [ (21,695 |
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| Stock

[ 1] {11

il

L1 | 11

Surrender of 19,358
restricted shares of
Class A Common
Stock as payment
for payroll tax
withholdings

(87)

(57

Conversion of
224,338 shares of
Class B Common
Stock to Class A

Common Stock

@ -

Stock compensation
expense for
issuance of
Class A Common
Stock options for
continuing
operations

3,963

3,963

Stock compensation
expense for
issuance of
Class A Commion
Stock options for
discontinued
operations

132

Unrealized loss on
securities and
other

(125)

125)

Netloss for 2007 ||

=R

=al [ T

411

— (
[ 289 [ (1.289]

Balance at
December 31,

2007 §

349

$

74 % — %

227,987

$

(125) §

(184,321) §

43,964
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Class A Class B Additional Other
Common Common Deferred Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated
Stock Stock Comp ion Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Total

Options exercised for
the purchase of
1,927,284 shares
of Class A
Common Stock 19 = = A - = B = R A = 5,872

Issuance of
134,000 shares of
Class A Common
Stock under
Employee Stock
Purchase Plan 1 — — 451 — — 452

Exercise of warrants
to purchase
1,050,000 shares
of Class A
Common Stack 11 — — 2,510 — T 2,521

Conversion of
425,000 shares of
Class B Common
Stock to Class A
Common Stock 5 (5 — —

Stock compensation
expense for
issuance of
Ciass A Common
Stock options - — — 3,758 — I 3,758

Unrealized loss on
securities and
other — — — — 137

Net income for 2008 [ | [ 1]

Balance at
December 31,

2008 $ 385 § 69 § — $ 240,559 § 12§ (126,753) $ 114,272

—_ 137
= 1] | 657,568 [ [ [ 57568 |

i
L]
-

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Operating activities: [T ] [T 11 1 L]
Net income/(loss) $ 57568 $ (1,289) § (21,695)
| Less: Loss from discontinued operations [1 ] T T 1T @78)] [ 1(23,671)]
Income/(loss) from continuing operations 57,568 (1,014) 1,976
IAdjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by
aperating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 5,865 6,200 7,956
[ Amortization of acquired intangible assets [T ] 147 ] [ ] 148 [ [ | 147
Deferred tax benefit (34,045) — —
[ Non-cash stock compensation expense — employee T T 37591 [ ] 3963 [ 1 3,116 |
Non-cash stock compensation expense — non-employee — 370 —
| Amortization of software development costs [T 1 2000 [ ] 45221 | [ 1273 ]
Amortization of debt discount — 480 960
[ Amortization of deferred financing fees [T T 8 11 313 ] 1 487 ]
Impairment of marketable securities 802 — —
[ Write-off of unamortized debt discount and debt issuance fees [ | | — 1 1 1 2458 1 | | — ]
Other non-cash (income)/expenses (40) 19 (17
| Changes in operating assets and liabilities: [T [T 11 T 1 B
Accounts receivable, net (41,403) 1,120 (658)
[ Unbilled receivables [TT®568) 11 @593 | | (1,275 ]
Inventory 2,658 (80) (2,094)
[ Other current assets [T ] o58 [ T T (187G | T 159 ]
Other noncurrent assets 187 541 i1
[ Accounts payable and accrued expenses [MTT121886 ] [ | 20381 [ [ 24 |
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 12,328 (748) 1,302
| Deferred revenue [TT @38)[ | 1 1200] [ [ (638)]
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 26,036 9,067 13,044
Net used in operating activities of discontinued operations [T ] T TT 3598 [ (8,037]
Total net cash provided by operating activities 26,036 5,469 5,007
Investing activities; 1] [T 11 [T 11 |
Purchases of property and equipment (3,703) (2,577) (2,760)
[Capitalized software development costs [T T @] [ 1 (1,525 ] [ [ (1,849)]
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations (4,164 (4,102 (4,609
Net cash provided by/(used) in investing activities of discontinued
operations — 4,000 (1,442)
Net cash used in investing activities (4,164) (102) (6,051)
[Financing activities; ] [T ] L1 []
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt — 10,000 16,000
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations T 1 @695 T 1015998 | | (5589
Proceeds from/(payments on) draws on revolving line of credit,
net — — (8,004
Financing fees related to issuance of Class A Common Stock and
Convertible subordinated debentures — — (1,470
Proceeds from exercise of warrants 2,521 2,208 —
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options and sale of
stock 6,324 4,018 731
Net cash provided by financing activities of continuing operations 1,150 230 1,668
Net cash provided by financing activities of discontinued
operations — — 58
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,150 230 1,726
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents of
__discontinued operations , — 1 — 357
Net increase in cash from continuing operations 23,022 5,195 10,103
Net increasel(decrease) in cash from discontinued : .
operations e — 402 | (9,064) |
Net increase in cash 23,022 5,697 1,038
[Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year [ 715955 [ 1 110358 [ | | 9,320 |
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 38,977 $ 15,955 $ 10,358

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009



See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. develops and applies highly reliable wireless data communications
technology. We manage our business in two segments, Commercial and Government:

Commercial Segment. Our carrier software system products enable wireless carriers to deliver
premium services including short text messages, location information, internet content, and other
enhanced communication services to and from wireless phones. We provide enhanced 9-1-1 (ES-1-1)
services, commercial location-based services, and inter-carrier text message distribution services on a
hosted, or service bureau basis. As of December 31, 2008, we provide hosted services under contracts
with more than 40 wireless carrier networks and Voice-over-Internet-Protocol (VolP) service providers.
We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic
application which is available via all major US wireless carriers. We earn carrier software-based
systems revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and customization fees and maintenance
fees. Pricing is generally based on the volume of capacity purchased from us by the carrier. We also
provide carrier technology on a hosted, i.e., service bureau basis; that is, customers use our software
functionality through connections to and from our network operations centers, paying us monthly based
on the number of subscribers, cell sites, or call center circuits, or message volume.

Government Segment. We provide communication systems integration, information technology
services, and software solutions to the U.S. Department of Defense and other government customers.
We design, assemble, sell and maintain satellite-based network communication systems, including our
SwiftLink® deployable communication systems which incorporate high speed, encrypted, Internet
Protocol technology. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities, and resell access to
satellite airtime (known as space segment).

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of our wholly
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash equivalents are reported at fair value, which
approximates cost.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable. Substantially all of our accounts receivable are trade
receivables generated in the ordinary course of our business. We use estimates to determine the amount of
the allowance for doubtful accounts necessary to reduce accounts receivable to their expected net realizable
value. We estimate the amount of the required allowance by reviewing the status of significant past-due
receivables and by establishing provisions for estimated losses by analyzing current and historical bad debt
trends. Changes to our allowance for doubtful accounts are recorded as a component of general and
administrative expenses in our accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Our credit and
collection policies and the financial strength of our customers are critical to us in maintaining a relatively small
amount of write-offs of receivables. We generally do not require collateral from or enter netting agreements
with our customers. Receivables that are ultimately deemed uncollectible are charged-off as a reduction of
receivables and the allowance for doubtful accounts.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

Inventory. We maintain inventory of component parts and finished product for our Government deployable
communications systems. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is based on the weighted
average method. The cost basis for finished units includes manufacturing cost.

Investments in Marketable Securities and Note Receivable. The Company received a $1,000 note and
some marketable securities as partial consideration from three small divestitures during 2007. The marketable
securities, now valued at $78, are included in other current assets and are classified as available-for-sale in
accordance with the provision of SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities. These securities are carried at fair market value based on quoted market price. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, the Company reported $152 net unrealized losses in stockholders’ equity as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive income. During 2008, the Company has determined that the losses in fair
market value of marketable securities held were other-than-temporary and wrote down the value of these
securities by approximately $802, which the write-down is included in Other income, net. Gains or losses on
securities sold will be based on the specific identification method. The note receivable was reported in other
current assets for 2007 and was collected in full in November of 2008, including interest at 8.25%.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of equipment,
generally five years for furniture and fixtures and three to four years for computer equipment, software and
vehicles. Our depreciable asset base includes equipment in our network operations centers related to our
hosted service offerings, development costs for computer software for internal use, and company-wide
computer hardware. Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method over
the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the remaining term of the lease. Assets held under capital leases are
stated at the lesser of the present value of future minimum lease payments or the fair value of the property at
the inception of the lease. The assets recorded under capital ieases are amortized over the lesser of the lease

term or the estimated useful life of the assets in a manner consistent with our depreciation policy for owned
assets.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of assets of acquired businesses.
Goodwill acquired in a purchase business combination is not amortized, but instead is evaluated annually for
impairment using a discounted cash flow model in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assels.

Software Development Costs. We capitalize software development costs after we establish technological
feasibility, and amortize those costs over the estimated useful lives of the software beginning on the date when
the software is available for general release. Acquired technology, representing the estimated value of the
proprietary technology acquired, has also been recorded as capitalized software development costs.

Costs we incurred are capitalized when technological feasibility has been established. For new products,
technological feasibility is established when an operative version of the computer software product is
completed in the same software language as the product to be ultimately marketed, performs all the major
functions planned for the product, and has successfully completed initial customer testing. Technological
feasibility for enhancements to an existing product is established when a detail program design is completed.
Costs that are capitalized include direct labor, related overhead and other direct costs. These costs are
amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the product’s estimated useful life,
which has not been greater than three years. Amortization is also computed using the ratio that current
revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that product (the
revenue curve method). If this revenue curve method results in amortization greater than the amount
computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Our policies to
determine when to capitalize software development costs and how much to amortize in a given period require
us to make subjective estimates and judgments. If our software products do not achieve the level of market
acceptance that we expect and our future revenue estimates for these products change, the amount of
amortization that we record may increase
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

compared to prior periods. The amortization of capitalized software development costs has been recorded as a
cost of revenue.

Acquired technology is amortized over the product’s estimated useful life based on the purchase price
allocation and valuation procedures performed at the time of the acquisition. Amortization is calculated using
the ratio of the estimated future cash flows generated in each period to the estimated total cash flows to be
contributed from each product or the straight-line method, whichever is greater.

For 2008, 2007, and 2006 we capitalized $461, $1,525, and 1,849, respectively, of software development
costs of continuing operations for certain software projects after the point of technological feasibility had been
reached but before the products were available for general release. Accordingly, these costs have been
capitalized and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives beginning when the products are
available for general release. The capitalized costs relate to our location-based software.

We believe that these capitalized costs will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by these
products.

The Company capitalizes all costs related to software developed or obtained for internal use when
management commits to funding the project and the project completes the preliminary project stage.
Capitalization of such costs ceases when the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.

Acquired Intangible Assets. Acquired intangible assets have useful lives of 5 to 19 years. We are
amortizing these assets using the greater of the straight-line method or the revenue curve method.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. Long-lived assets, including intangible assets, are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or
group of assets may not be fully recoverable.

If an impairment indicator is present, we evaluate recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of
the assets to future undiscounted net cash flows that we expect to generate from these assets. If the assets
are impaired, we recognize an impairment charge equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying values or fair values,
less estimated costs of disposal.

Other Comprehensive Income/Loss. Comprehensive incomefloss includes changes in the equity of a
business during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources.
Other comprehensive income/loss refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive income, but excluded from net income. For
operations outside the U.S. that prepare financial statements in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, results of
operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates during the period, and assets and
liabilities are translated at end-of-period exchange rates. Translation adjustments for our European subsidiary
are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity. Also included
are any unrealized gains or losses on marketable securities that are classified as available-for-sale. Total
comprehensive income/(loss) for each of the three years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2008, was not
materially different than consolidated net income/(loss).

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is generated from our two segments as described below.

Services Revenue. Revenue from hosted services consists of monthly recurring service fees and is
recognized in the month earned. Revenue from subscriber service fees is recognized in the period earned.
Maintenance fees are collected in advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance period, which is
typically annual. Any unearned revenue, including unrecognized maintenance fees, is inciuded in deferred
revenue.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

We also recognize services revenue from the design, development and deployment of information
processing and communication systems primarily for government enterprises. These services are provided
under time and materials contracts, cost plus fee contracts, or fixed price contracts. Revenue is recognized
under time and materials contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price
service contracts are accounted for using the proportional performance method. These contracts generally
allow for monthly billing or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses on
contracts are recognized in their entirety at the date that they become evident.

Systems Revenue. We design, develop, and deploy communications systems. These systems may include
packaged software licenses. Systems typically contain multiple elements, which may include the product
license, installation, integration, and hardware. The total arrangement fee is allocated among each element
based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the fair value of each of the elements. Fair value is generally
determined based on the price charged when the element is sold separately. in the absence of evidence of fair
value of a delivered element, revenue is allocated first to the undelivered elements based on fair value and the
residual revenue to the delivered elements. The software licenses are generally perpetual licenses for a
specified number of users that allow for the purchase of annual maintenance at a specified rate. All fees are
recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Position 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition
(SOP 97-2) when four criteria are met. These four criteria are (i) evidence of an arrangement (ii) delivery has
occurred, (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable and (iv) the fee is probable of collection. Software license fees
billed and not recognized as revenue are included in defefred revenue. Systems containing software licenses
include a 90-day warranty for defects. We have not incurred significant warranty costs on any software product
to date, and no costs are currently accrued upon recording the related revenue.

Systems revenue is also derived from fees for the development, implementation and maintenance of
custom applications. Fees from the development and implementation of custom applications are generally
performed under time and materiais and fixed fee contracts. Revenue is recognized under time and materials
contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price product delivery contracts are
accounted for using the percentage-of-completion or proportional performance method, measured either by
total costs incurred as a percentage of total estimated costs at the completion of the contract, or direct labor
costs incurred compared to estimated total direct labor costs for projects for which third-party hardware
represents a significant portion of the total estimated costs. These contracts generally allow for monthly billing
or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses under long-term contracts are
recognized in their entirety at the date that they become evident. Revenue from hardware sales to our monthly
subscriber customers is recognized as systems revenue.

Under our contracts with the U.S. government for both systems and services, contract costs, including the
allocated indirect expenses, are subject to audit and adjustment by the Defense Contract Audit Agency. We
record revenue under these contracts at estimated net realizable amounts.

Our accounting for revenues from systems and services contracts not accounted for under SOP 97-2 or the
proportional performance of percentage of completion methods, follows the guidance of Emerging Issues Task
Force 00-21 "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” (EITF 00-21) for determining of the number of
units of accounting and the allocation of the total fair value among the multiple elements.

Deferral of Costs Incurred. We defer direct costs incurred in certain situations as dictated by authoritative
accounting literature. In addition, if the revenue for a delivered item is not recognized because it is not
separable from the arrangement, then we defer incremental costs related to that delivered but unrecognized
element. Deferred costs are included in other current assets on the balance sheet.

Advertising Costs. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $1, $34, and
$29, for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2008, respectively.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

Capitalized Interest. Total interest incurred was $1,120, $5,026, and $3,253 for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Approximately $18, $74, and $55 of total interest incurred
was capitalized as a component of software development costs during the year ended December 31, 2008,
2007, and 2006 respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation. We have two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are
described more fully in Note 17.

Beginning January 1, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 123(R)
(“Statement No. 123(R)") requires us to report all share based payments to employees, including grants of
employee stock options in the income statement based on their fair value. We adopted Statement No. 123(R)
effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method.

Research and Development Expense. We incur research and development costs which are primarily
comprised of compensation and travel expenses related to our engineers engaged in the development and
enhancement of new and existing software products. All costs are expensed as incurred prior to reaching
technological feasibility.

Income Taxes. Income tax amounts and balances are accounted for using the asset and liability method of
accounting for income taxes as prescribed by SFAS 109. Under this method, deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(FIN 48) which prescribes a minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition,
measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting interim periods, disclosure and transition. If a
tax position does not meet the more-likely-than-not initial recognition threshold, no benefif is recorded in the
financial statements. Upon the adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, the estimated value of the Company’s
uncertain tax positions was a liability of $2.7 million resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not
include interest and penalties. The Company recorded the estimated value of its uncertain tax position by
reducing the value of certain tax attributes. The Company would classify any interest and penalties accrued on
any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or
penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 or
the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008 and 2007. The Company files income tax returns in
U.S. and state jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2008, open tax years in the federal and some state
jurisdictions date back to 1999, due to the taxing authorities’ ability to adjust operating loss carry forwards.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Company’s major categories of financial assets and liabilities
subject to fair value measurements include cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities that are held
as available for sale. Both categories use observable inputs only and are measured using a market approach
based on quoted prices, see Note 14.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” which defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 was effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, the FASB
decided to issue a final Staff Position to allow a one-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for non-financial
assets and non-financial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
non-recurring basis. The FASB also decided to amend SFAS 157 to exclude FASB Statement No. 13 and its
related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address leasing transactions. The adoption of SFAS 157
for financial assets and
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

liabilities in the first quarter of 2008 did not have an effect on the Company’s results of operations and financial
position. The Company is evaluating the impact of the non-financial asset and liability provisions of this
standard and does not expect the adoption of those provisions to have a material impact on its financial
statements. In October 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 157-3, "Determining The Fair Market Value of a Financial
Asset When the Market for That Asset is not Active” (“SFAS 157-3), which clarifies the application of

SFAS 157 in a market that is not active and provides an example to iliustrate in determining fair market value
in that market. The Company is evaluating the impact of SFAS 157-3 provisions of this standard and does not
expect the adoption of those provisions to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, “Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities.”
SFAS 159 allows companies to elect to measure certain assets and liabilities at fair value and is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company did not elect the fair value measurement of
SFAS 159,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141(R), “Business Combinations.” This standard establishes
principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquired and the goodwill
acquired. This statement also establishes disclosure requirements which will enable users to evaluate the
nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141(R) is effective for us for acquisitions made
after December 31, 2008. The Company is evaluating the impact of this standard. The adoption of
SFAS 141(R) may have a material impact on the Company'’s financial statements for acquisitions
post-adoption.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51" (SFAS 160). SFAS 160 amends ARB No. 51 to establish
accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of
a subsidiary. It also amends certain of ARB No. 51's consolidation procedures for consistency with the
requirements of SFAS 141(R). This statement is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The statement shall be applied prospectively as of the
beginning of the fiscal year in which the statement is initially adopted. The adoption of SFAS 160 will not have
a material impact on the Company'’s financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement 133" (SFAS 161). SFAS 161 amends and expands the
disclosure requirements of SFAS 133 with the intent to provide users of financial statements with an enhanced
understanding of (i) How and why an entity uses derivative instruments; (i) How derivative instruments and
related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133 and its related interpretations and (iii) How derivative
instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash
flows. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning
after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. The Company does not expect the adoption of
SFAS 161 to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 162, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles”
(SFAS 162). SFAS 162 is intended to improve financial reporting by identifying a consistent framework, or
hierarchy, for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental
entities that are presented in conformity with GAAP. This statement shall be effective 60 days following the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Auditing
amendments to AU Section 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles’. The Company is evaluating the impact of this standard and does not expect the
adoption of SFAS 162 to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. Enterprise Assets-Discontinued Operations

In 2007, the Company sold its Enterprise division operations, which had previously been included in its
Commercial Segment. The operations and cash flows of the business have been eliminated from those of
continuing operations and the Company has no significant involvement in the operations since the disposal
transactions. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations for the Enterprise assets have been
classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (Statement No. 144). Impairment charges of $15,500 to adjust the estimated
carrying value of Enterprise long-lived assets and goodwill were recorded during 2006 based on information
obtained during the process of offering the operating assets for sale and the declines in the Subscriber
businesses being sold.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company sold two of its three Enterprise units to strategic buyers for
common stock in the acquiring publicly traded companies valued at approximately $1,000 and earn-out
arrangements. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we wrote down the public securities to $78. The
Company does not expect to receive material payments from the earn-out arrangement. During May 2007, the
last Enterprise unit was sold for $4,000 in cash (of which $200 was released from escrow in June 2008), a
$1,000 18-month note which was paid in full in November 2008, and $250 in equity interest.

3. Incomel(loss) Per Common Share

Basic income/(loss) per common share is based upon the average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Stock options to purchase approximately 2.6 million, 2.5 million and 6.5 million
shares were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share because their inclusion would
have been anti-dilutive for the years ended 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Because we incurred a loss
from continuing operations in 2007 potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the computation because
the result would be anti-dilutive. These potentially dilutive securities consist of stock options, restricted stock,
and warrants as discussed in Notes 1 and 17.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements — (Continued)
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

The following table summarizes the computations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended December 31:

2008 2007 2006

[Income/(loss) from continuing operations [ B 57568 B [(014] 1 1976 |
LLoss from discontinued operations — (275) (23,671)
Net loss [ B 575687 B [ (1289 b [(21.699)]
Denominator for basic earnings per share -— weighted-average common

shares outstanding 43,063 41,453 39,430
INet effect of dilutive stock options based on treasury stock method [T 1319571 T ] — 1 11 632 |
Net effect of dilutive warrants based on treasury stock method 386 — 104
Denominator for diluted earnings per share — weighted-average common

shares outstanding and assumed conversions 46,664 | | {41,543 | | 40,166
Income/(loss) per share — basic:
Income/(loss) per share from continuing operations [ BT1 1341 B (o2)] $] o0.08]
Loss per share from discontinued operations — (0.01) (0.60)
Net income/(loss) per share — basic B 134 B (003 B[ (0.55)]
Income/(loss) per share — diluted:
Income/(loss) per share from continuing operations (BT 1237 B[ (0o B o0.08 |
Loss per share from discontinued operations — (0.01) (0.59)
Net income/(loss) per share-diluted T B 123] B (003 BT (054]

4, Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Property and equipment acquired under capital leases totaled $3,343, $1,979, and $1,725 during the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 20086, respectively.

As partial consideration for our 2007 divestitures, we received publicly trade common stock in two of the
acquiring companies valued at approximately $1,000 at the time of January 2007 closing on the transactions.
During 2008, the Company returned a portion of the common stock of one of the acquiring companies in

settlement of a divestiture post closing adjustment claim. We recorded a $140 expense as part of this
settlement.

Interest paid totaled $922, $1,002, and $607 during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006,
respectively.

Alternative minimum income taxes and estimated state income taxes paid totaled $559 during 2008. No
income taxes were paid for 2007 and 2006.

5. Unbilled Receivables
Unbilled receivables consist of the excess of revenue earned in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles over the amounts billable at contract milestones. Substantially all unbilled receivables are
expected to be billed and collected within twelve months.
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6. Inventory

Inventory consisted of the following at December 31:

2008 2007
(Component parts — | B [1.763] B (2670
Finished goods 952 2,703
[ Total inventory at year end | B 12718 B 15379 |
7. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

2008 2007
Computer equipment , | 5 128456 | 5 ] 24,393 |
Computer software 18,408 16,360
Fumniture and fixtures [ 1T ] 2520 T ] 2558}
Leasehold improvements 3,168 2,760
Land [ T toog [ T [ 100071
Vehicles 107 107
[ Total property and equipment at cost at year end [ 1 153659 [ | | 47,178}
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (41,268) (35,969)
[ Net property and equipment at year end (B 1123011 & [ 11,209] |

8. Acquired Intangible Assets and Capitalized Software Development Costs

Our acquired intangible assets and capitalized software development costs consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,
2008 2007
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Acquired intangible assets: [ | |1 | L] b1 L] ] LI11 []
Customer Lists $ 606 % 521  § 85 § 606 % 405 § 201
| Trademarks & Patents [ 1 1 612 ] ] Loass T 41T 81T [ 1041 ] 1. 508 ]
Software development costs,
including acquired
technology 9,646 6,873 2,773 9,189 4,783 4,406
[_Toral [6_[10,864 | §__ | 7,529 | (53,335 | 6_ 110407 [ 6__ | 5292 | 5,115 |
Estimated future amartization expense: [T [l
Year ending December 31, 2009 $ 1,845
[ Year ending December 31, 2010 N [ B[ 786 ]
Year ending December 31, 2011 b 227
[ Year ending December 31, 2012 [ B] 80}
Year ending December 31, 2013 80
| Thereafter , o AE
$ 3,335
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We routinely update our estimates of the recoverability of the software products that have been capitalized.
Management uses these estimates as the basis for evaluating the carrying values and remaining useful lives of
the respective assets.

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Our accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following at December 31:

2008 2007
[Accounts payable [ 'B 121,223 5[ 5849 |
Accrued expenses 13,122 6,611
| Total accounts payable and accrued expenses at year end | |5 1343451 B 112,459 |

Accrued expenses consist primarily of costs incurred for which we have not yet been invoiced, accrued
sales taxes, and amounts due to our E9-1-1 customers that we have billed and collected from regulating
agencies on their behalf under cost recovery arrangements.

10. Line of Credit

We have maintained a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank since 2003. In June 2007, we
amended the agreement to extend our line of credit and decrease the cost of borrowing. Under the amended
agreement, the availability of the line was extended to June 2010, and the borrowing rate decreased from
prime plus 1.25% to the bank’s prime rate which was 3.25% per annum at December 31, 2008. Our maximum
borrowing availability remained the same at $22,000. Borrowings at any time are limited to an amount based
principally on accounts receivable levels and a working capital ratio, each as defined in the amended line of
credit agreement. The line of credit available is aiso reduced by the amounts of letters of credit outstanding
which totaled $2,280 at December 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007 we had no borrowings
outstanding under the line of credit and we had approximately $19,300 and $11,000, respectively, of unused
borrowing availability under this line.

Our amended line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a
minimum adjusted quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio as well as other restrictive covenants including,
among others, restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake
actions outside the ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt,
distribute dividends, and repurchase our stock, and maintenance of a minimum tangible net worth. The
agreement also contains a subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business,
operations, or financial condition of the Company occur, or (ii) no material impairment of the prospect of
repayment of any portion of the borrowings under the agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or
priority of the lenders security interests in the collateral of the bank credit agreement. As of December 31,
2008, we were in compliance with the covenants related to our line of credit and we believe that the Company
will continue to comply with its restrictive covenants. If our performance does not result in compliance with any
of these restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be
no assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under its agreement with us, including
declaring all outstanding debt due and payable.

In December 2006, we borrowed $5,000 under 3-year notes secured by accounts receivable of one
customer. Effective March 28, 2008, we prepaid this debt in full and modified the terms of the note to a line of
credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum indebtedness of the line is equal to $1,700 at
December 31, 2008 less $150 per until the maturity date of December 28, 2009. The borrowing rate is the
London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 500 basis points. As of December 31, 2008, the Company has
not borrowed against this line.
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11. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31:

2008 2007
Note payable dated June 2007 due July 1, 2012 and bearing interest at prime rate plus 0.25% LB } } 1 1$ ! 7‘ ‘
per annum, See further description 7,167, 9,16
Note payable dated December 28, 2006, paid in full March 28, 2008 and modified to a line of
credit (see Note 10 for further description) — 3,501
Other, paid in full January 2008 [T1 — 1 1] 11
Total long term debt 7,167 12,669
Less: current portion [ 7 1@000) [ | [ (3661)]
Non current portion of long term debt $ 5,167 $ 9,008
Aggregate maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2008 are as follows:
2009 {182,000 ]
2010 2,000
2011 [ T 12,000 |
2012 1,167
[ Total [ B[7,167 |

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10,000 of March 2006 secured notes with a five year bank term loan.
The borrowing rate under the new term loan was the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (3.5% at December 31,
2008) and payments are due in equal monthly installments of $167 pius interest. In March 2006, we issued
(i) $10,000 of secured notes due March 10, 2009, with cash interest at 14% per annum, and (ii) warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Comman Stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per
share. In December 2008, the holders of 1.1 million of the warrants exercised those warrants and 1.1 million
shares were issued. The remaining 0.7 million warrants remain outstanding and expire March 2011. The
resulting carrying value of the debt at issuance was $6,500, net of the original discount of $3,500 which was
being amortized to interest expense over its three-year term using the effective interest method, yielding an
effective interest rate of 15.2%. The remaining unamortized debt discount and issuance expenses of
$2,458 million were written off in the second quarter of 2007 as a result of early retirement of the March 2006
note.

12, Capital Leases

We lease certain equipment under capital leases. Property and equipment included the following amounts
for capital leases at December 31:

2008 2007
Computer equipment [ B 15340 § 15,685 |
Computer software 1,654 1,474
Furniture and fixtures T 181 1 [ 237 |
Leasehold improvements 25 6
[ Total equipment under capital lease at cost [ [ T7037] 1 7402
Less: accumulated amortization (2,090) (3,824)
[ Net property and equipment under capital leases B 14947 ] B 13578 |

Capital leases are collateralized by the leased assets. Our capital leases generally contain provisions
whereby we can purchase the equipment at the end of the lease for a one dollar buyout or the current fair
market value
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capped at 18.5% of the original purchase price. Amortization of leased assets is included in depreciation and
amortization expense.

Future minimum payments under capital lease obligations consisted of the following at December 31, 2008:

2009 o o B 2.101 |
2010 1,363

go11 | [ 11,089 |
2012 567

{__Total minimum lease payments B [ 115,100 |
Less: amounts representing interest (517)
| Present value of net minimum lease payments (including current portion of $1,837) | 514,583 |

13. Common Stock

Our Class A common stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share of stock held for all matters
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Our Class B stockholders are entitled to three votes for each share owned.

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In the first quarter of 2008, we adopted SFAS 157 "Fair Value Measurements” for financial assets and
liabilities. This standard defines fair value, provides guidance for measuring fair value, and requires certain
disclosures. This standard does not require any new fair value measurements, but rather applies to all other
accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. This standard does not apply
measurements related to share-based payments, nor does it apply to measurements related to inventory.

SFAS 157 discusses valuation techniques, such as the market approach (comparable market prices), the
income approach (present value of future income or cash flows), and the cost approach (cost to replace the
service capacity of an asset or replacement cost). The statement utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The following is a brief
description of those three levels:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

Level 3: Observable inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions.

Our population of financial assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurements and the necessary
disclosures are as follow:

Fair Value as of Fair Value Measurements at 12/31/2008
12/31/2008 Using Fair Value Hierarchy
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assefs ‘ [T | 1T O T I O O P e

Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,977 $ 38,977 $ — $ —
| Marketable securities available for sale | | [ 78 [ 1 77 17 [T 9 1 [ 1.4

$ 39,055 $ 39,055 $ — $ -
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The fair values of marketable securities are based on quoted market prices from various stock exchanges.

15. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS 109 using the asset and liability approach to
accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon differences
between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax
rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Net deferred tax assets are
recorded when it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will be realized.

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following at December 31:

__2008

[Current; L] L]
Federal $ 636

[ State [ [ 18]
Total current 788
Deferred: N | ‘
Federal (29,938)

[ State ] @107]
Total deferred 34,045)

| Total benefit for income taxes from confinuing operations [ B [(33250]

In previous years, the Company recorded a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets due to
uncertainty surrounding the realization of the benefits of such assets; therefore, there was no tax provision in
2007 or 2006. For 2008, based on historical taxable income from continuing operations and projections for
future taxable income, the Company determined that it is more likely than not that its deferred tax assets are
expected to be realized, and reversed the valuation allowance. The reversal of the valuation allowance and
other adjustments to the deferred tax assets resulted in the recognition of income tax benefits of $33,257 in
2008. The $33,257 benefit is comprised of a federal benefit of $29,302 and a state net benefit of $3,955.
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Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were:

2008 2007
Deferred tax assets: [ 11 T T |
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 26,746 $ 38,198
[ Research and development tax credit [T T 2941 11 19 |
Stock compensation expense 1,513 1,635
| Depreciation and amortization [T 1 4079 ] | ] 4578 |
Reserves and accrued expenses 1,432 958
[ Alternative minimum tax credit T 1 836 T ] —{]
Deferred revenue 108 813
| Other L1 33] [ ] 62 |
Total deferred tax assets 35,181 46,259
Deferred tax liabilities: 1] [T 11 I
Capitalized software development costs (1,132) (1,202)
[ Other [ ]
Total deferred tax liabilities (1,136) (1,208)
Net deferred tax asset [T 134,045 [ | | 45,053 |
Valuation allowance for net deferred tax asset — (45,053)
Net deferred tax asset recognized in the consolidated balance sheets [ 6134045 [ B | —]

At December 31, 2008, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of
approximately $81,643, which includes approximately $24,177 of remaining acquired net operating losses from
the acquisition of Xypoint in 2001, and $9,361 from the excess tax benefits related to stock-based
compensation deductions which will increase additional paid in capital once the benefit is realized, through a
reduction of income taxes payable. The net operating loss carryforwards acquired in connection with the
purchase of Xypoint in 2001 will begin to expire in 2018. The remaining net operating loss carryforwards will
expire from 2019 through 2027.

The timing and manner in which we may utilize the net operating loss carryforwards and tax credits in future
tax years will be limited by the amounts and timing of future taxable income and by the application of the
ownership change rules under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Utilization of the Xypoint net
operating losses are limited as a result of ownership changes occurring in 1997 and 2001. Additionally, the
Company determined that they had an ownership change in December 2001, which imposes an annual
limitation of the net operating losses created in 1999 to 2001. As of December 31, 2007, the Company reduced
its deferred tax assets related to the portion of the research and development tax credits acquired from Xypoint
that are limited under Section 382, which cannot be used before they expire.

The remaining U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards may become subject to limitations under the
Internal Revenue Code as well. We have state net operating loss carryforwards available which expire through
2027, utilization of which will be limited in a manner similar to the federal net operating loss carryforwards. At
December 31, 2008, the Company had federal alternative minimum tax credit carry forwards of approximately
$636, which are available to offset future regular federal taxes. Research and development credits of
approximately $294 will begin to expire in 2011.
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The reconciliation of the reported income tax benefit to the amount that would result by applying the
U.S. federal statutory rate of 34% to loss from continuing operations for the year ended December 31 is as

follows:
2008 2007 2006

Income tax (benefit) at statutory rate [ ] 82668 5 @64 B | 653 |
Change in valuation allowances (45,053) (887) (2,241)
Write-down of tax atfributes [T 1874 ] (1894 ] —
Non deductible items 1,612 255 55
Non deductible stock compensation expense T 4731 [ 1 (o8] [ | 6891
Research and development tax credit (230) (130) (43)
Change in state apportionment tax rates on deferred assets/liabilities 17 G T 1 @l 1 1 807
State tax (benefit) 1,066 (8) 52
Dther [P @) T ael ([ 28]

Total $ (33257) § — 3 —

Upon the adoption of FIN 48, the estimated value of the Company's uncertain tax positions was a liability of
$2,736 resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not include interest and penatties. It is
reasonably possible theses unrecognized deferred tax benefits will be recognized in the next twelve months
through the tax provision. The Company does not currently anticipate that the total amounts of unrecognized
tax benefits will significantly increase within the next 12 months. The Company recorded the estimated value of
its uncertain tax positions by reducing the value of certain tax attributes.

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company's unrecognized tax benefits (excluding
interest, penalties and related tax carry forwards):

Total

Balance at December 31, 2006 [ 1] [
Gross increases related to prior year tax positions —

[ Gross decreases reiated to prior year tax positions i =l
Gross increases related o current year tax positions 2,736

[ Settlements/lapse in statute of limitation =

Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 2,736

[ Gross increases related fo prior year tax positions Ll
Gross decreases related to prior year tax positions —

[ Gross increases related to current year tax positions N
Settlements/iapse in statute of limitation —

Balance at December 31, 2008 B 12,734 |

If the Company’s paositions are sustained by the taxing authority in favor of the Company, approximately,
$2,736 (excluding interest and penalties) of uncertain tax position liabilities would favorably impact the
Company’s effective tax rate.

Upon the adoption of FIN 48, the Company’s policy is to classify any interest and penalties accrued on any
unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or
penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for year ended December 31, 2008 and the
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008. The Company files income tax returns in U.S. and state
jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2008, open tax years in the federal and some state jurisdictions date back to
1899, due to the taxing authorities’ ability to adjust operating loss carry forwards.
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16. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) pian covering defined employees who meet established eligibility
requirements. Under the provisions of the plan, the Company may contribute a discretionary match. The plan
may also contribute a non-elective contribution determined by the Company. For 2008, the Company matched
35% of employee deferrals. The Company contribution was $798, $575, and $218 for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 respectively.

17. Stock-based Compensation Plans

We maintain two stock-based compensation plans: a stock incentive plan, and an employee stock purchase
plan.

Stock Incentive Plan. We maintain a stock incentive plan that is administered by our Compensation
Committee of our Board of Directors. Options granted under the plan vest over periods ranging from one to five
years and expire 10 years from the date of grant. Under the principal share-based compensation plans, the
Company may grant certain employees, directors and consultants options to purchase common stock, stock
appreciation rights and restricted stock units. Options are rights to purchase common stock of the Company at
the fair market value on the date of the grant. Stock appreciation rights are equity settied share-based
compensation arrangements whereby the number of shares that will ultimately be issued is based upon the
appreciation of the Company's common stock and the number of awards granted to an individual. Restricted
stock units are equity settled share-based compensation arrangements of a number of share of the Company’s
common stock. Restricted stock unit holders do not have voting rights until the restrictions lapse.

Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective method.
Consistent with the requirements of SFAS 123(R), we recognized compensation expense net of estimated
forfeitures over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of 5 years. The Company
estimates the fair value of each stock option award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the Company's stock. The Company estimates
forfeitures based on historical experience and the expected term of the options granted are derived from
historical data on employee exercises. The risk free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in
effect at the time of the grant. The Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near
future.
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A summary of our stock option activity and related information consisted of the following for the years
ended December 31 (all share amounts in thousands):

2008 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Number of Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
'Outstanding,beginning of \ ] ‘ g} s l h 1 t ‘ \ 3‘ t E ‘
year ‘ 11,144 3.6 11,622, 3.62 9,79 3.86,
Granted 3,056 3.57 2,537 3.69 2,908 2.42
Exercised [T T @l 3041 [ (34p[[ T2581] | dog)[1__T175]
Forfeited (697) 3.58 (1,668) 4.07 (880) 3.26
Dutstanding, end of year | | [ 11676 [ B 1377 1] [ 11144] [ 1369 [ | 11622 [ B [3.67]
Exercisable, at end of year 6,308 § 412 6,515 $ 4.14 6823 § 4.33
P/ested and expected to ‘ {$ ‘ 4] ‘ ‘ LB ’ 9‘ ‘ i ‘$ ‘ } 1
vest, at end of year 9,992 3.8 7,510 3.6 8,179 3.62
Estimated
weighted-average grant-
date fair value of options
granted during the year § 2.07 $ 3.69 $ 2.42
Weighted-average
remaining contractual life
of options outstanding at
end of year 6.5 years 6.6 years 7.0 years|
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average Number of Average
Options Fair Value Options Fair Value Options Fair Value
Non-vested, beginningofyear || (4692 [ 6 [229[] [4799]F [205]] [3972[% [233]
Forfeited (525) % 2.16 (1,088) $ 2.37 (731) $ 2.03
Vested [ TA792 1B T[22 [[__[1679(F [213[[ [1350 [ _[2.41]
Exercisable, at year end ____ 6308 $ 3.56 6,515 § 3.73 __£§_Z_§ $ 4.01
Non-vested, at end of year ] (5368 [ 8 2211 4692 [ B 12291 [4799 [ 8 205}

Exercise prices for options outstanding at December 31, 2008 ranged from $0.29 to $26.05 as follows (all
share amounts in thousands):

Weighted-Average

Weighted-Average Remaining Weighted-Average
Exercise Prices Contractual Life Exercise Prices
. Options of Options of Options Options of Options
Exercise Prices  gytstanding Outstanding Outstanding (years)  Exercisable Exercisable
$0.20—%261 ] [ 2917 [ 8 ] 2.4q | | | 6.59 [ | 1963 [ 8 | 247
2.61— $5.21 6515  § 3.34 6.99 2365 % 3.30
$5.21— $7.82 ] [ 221418 | 6.74 | | | 519 [ ] [ 1,950 1% i 6.74 ]
$7.82 — $26.05 30 § 11.07 4.01 30 § 11.07
Total end of year _ | | L6768 [ ] |11 t L1 [ 6304 [ ] ! ]
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As of December 31, 2008, the aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable was $56,348. As of
December 31, 2008, we estimate that we will recognize $3,385 in expense for outstanding, unvested options
over their weighted average remaining vesting period of 3.9 years.

In calculating the fair value of our stock options using Black-Scholes for the years ended December 31,
2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively, our assumptions were as follows:

For The Years Ended

December 31,
2008 2007 2006
Expected Iife (in years) [ 55 ] 55 [ ] 55 ]
Risk-free interest rate(%) 2.65%-3.33% 4.24%-4.90% 4.56%
Molatility(%) [ 1 60%-67% | | 68.1%-83% | [ 78% |
Dividend yield(%) 0% 0% 0%

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Company granted a total of 20,556, 89,600,
and 22,025 of restricted shares of Class A Common Stock to directors and certain key executives. The
restrictions expired at the end of one year for directors and expire in annual increments over three years for
executives conditional on continued employment. The fair value of the restricted stock on the date of issuance
is recognized as non-cash stock compensation expense over the period over which the restrictions expire. We
recognized $105, $328, and $244 of non-cash stock compensation expense related to these grants for the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. We expect to record future stock
compensation expense of $50 as a result of these restricted stock grants that will be recognized over the
remaining vesting periods.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. We have an employee stock purchase plan (the Plan) that gives all
employees an opportunity to purchase shares of our Class A Common Stock. The Plan allows for the purchase
of 1,384,932 shares of our Class A Common Stock at a discount of 15% of the fair market value. The discount
of 15% is calculated based on the average daily share price on either the first or the last day of each quarterly
enrollment period, whichever date is more favorable to the employee. Option periods are three months in
duration. As of December 31, 2008, 1,092,821 shares of Class A Common Stock have been issued under the
Plan. Compensation expense relating to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is not material.

As of December 31, 2008, our total shares of Class A Common Stock reserved for future issuance is
comprised of:

(in thousands)

[Stock incentive plan |1 | 4,524 |

Warrants (see Note 11) 700

[Employee stock purchase plan 1 { 297 |
Total shares restricted for future use 5,516

As of December 31, 2008, the composition of non-cash stock compensation expense was as follows:

2008 2007 2006
Direct costs of revenue B (2484 B [2.080] [ 1,509 |
Research and development expense 822 867 558
[Sales and marketing expense [T 17 27 1T 7 6287 T 1 328 |
General and administrative expense 170 758 723
[ Total non-cash stock compensation expense [ G 13758 B (4333 6 [3116]]
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18. Operating Leases

We lease certain office space and equipment under non-canceiable operating leases that expire on various
dates through 2015. Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial terms of one
year or more consisted of the following at December 31, 2008:

gggg 2011 ' ] LR
p012-2013 [ TT11.260]
Beyond 575

| [ Bl9,553 |

Our leases include our offices in Annapolis, Maryland under a lease expiring in March 2011, a second
facility in Annapolis under a lease expiring in April 2013, a facility in Seattle, Washington under a lease expiring
in September 2010, a facility in Oakiand, California under a lease expiring August 2012, and we relocated our
production facility in Tampa, Florida under a lease expiring in December 2014. The Annapolis facilities are
utilized for executive and administrative offices, as well as portions of our Commercial and Government
Segments. The Seattle and Oakland facilities are utilized by our Commercial Segment and the Tampa facility
is utilized by our Government Segment. Future payments on all of our leases are estimated based on future
payments including the minimum future rent escalations, if any, stipulated in the respective agreements.

Rent expense for continuing operations was $4,079, $3,823, and $3,603 for the years ended December 31,
2008, 2007, and 20086, respectively.
19. Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily
of accounts receivable and unbilled receivables. Those customers that comprised 10% or more of our
revenues, accounts receivable, and unbilled receivables from continuing operations are summarized in the
following tables.

% of Total Revenues

For the Year Ended
December 31,

Customer Segment 2008 2007 2006
U.S. Government T TGovernmeni | [ [42%] | |37%] | |25%]
Customer A Commercial 22% 20% 20%

As of December 31, 2008 As of December 31, 2007

Accounts Unbilled Accounts Unbilled

Customer Receivable Receivables Receivable Receivables
[U-S. Government [] | 54% [ T | 73% 1 1 [ A0% ] ] | 66%
Customer A 22% <10% <10% <10%
Customer B Fl I <10% ] | | 10% [ | [ 16 [ ] I <10% |

As of December 31, 2008, our total exposure to credit risk was $69,532 based on the amount due to us by
the above customers. As of December 31, 2007, our exposure to such risks was $23,689. We did not

experience significant losses from amounts due to us by any customers for the year ended December 31,
2007.

20. Business and Geographic Segment Information

Our two reporting segments are the Commercial Segment and the Government Segment.
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Our Commercial Segment products and services enable wireless carriers to deliver short text messages,
location information, internet content, and other enhanced communication services to and from wireless
phones. Our Commercial Segment also provides E9-1-1 services, commercial location-based services,
inter-carrier text message distribution services, and carrier technology on a hosted, or service bureau, basis.
We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic
application.

Our Government Segment designs, assembles, sells and maintains data network communication systems,
including our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems. We also own and operate secure satellite
teleport facilities, resell access to satellite airtime (known as space segment), and provide communication
systems integration, information technology services, and software systems and services fo the
U.S. Department of Defense and other government customers.

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross profit. We do not maintain information
regarding segment assets. Accordingly, asset information by reportable segment is not presented.

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively, our revenues include
approximately $8,598, $5,551, and $7,348 of revenues generated from customers outside of the United States.

The following table sets forth results for our reportable segments as of December 31, 2008. All revenues
reported below are from external customers. A reconciliation of segment gross profit to net loss for the
respective periods is also included below:

Year Ended D ber 31,
2008 2007 2006
Comnt. Gvimt Total Comm. Gvmt Total Comm. Gvmt Total
Revenue T 1T 1 R [T T 1 [T T 1T ] T 1 al
Services 3 64,441 % 36918 $ 101,358 58,793 § 29269 88,062 58741 5 28638 % 88,380
[ _Systems T [37429 1 [ 81364 [118 7BS|L| (16521 1T 139585 1] | [ 56,106 1] ] TA7299 11 [ 19334 1 [ 36,556 |
Total revenue 101,870 118,272 220,142 75314 68,854 144,168 76,960 47,976 124,936
Direct costs of
o N I R I [ . —]
irect cost of
services 32,402 29,192 61,594 29,3 22,815 52,161 31,409 21,131 52,540
Direct cost of
,,,,,,,,,, 1T st 1| ez 11 | ozl LT sand 1] Tsssd | L sraed [ T s || Liserd 1|1 orad]
Total Direct
Costs 41,395 97,490 138,885 34,370 55,697 90,067 36,620 33,803 70,423
Grgsrsvpmﬁt [ LITT [T [N RN [N P B Y B [T 1T [
ervices gross
profit 32,038 6,454 35,901 28,332 7,508 35,840
Systems gross
5 T el 1| | ssod || | svtod | Lenssd || | srod || | snod 1| Lol ]| L sl | sner]
Total Gross
Profit $ 60475 § 20,782 § 81257 $ 40944 § 13157 B 54,101 & 40340 § 14,173 § 54,513
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2008 2007 2006
Total segment gross profit | B[ 81257 | B [ 54101 ] % | 54,513 ]
Research and development expense (16,161) (13,072) (12,586)
| Sales and marketing expense [T 1a3715 71 1 [a1e1n [ | [(11,713) ]
General and administrative expense (28,238) (19,334) (16,959)
| Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment [T 1 (5865 ] | | (6,2000] | [ (7,958)]
Amortization of acquired intangible assets (147) (148 (147)
| Interest expense [T 1T @] T [ 77 [ 1 (1,751]
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance expenses, including $2,458
write-off in June 2007 (180) (3,176) (1,447)
| Gain on sale of patent 11 8060 [ 1 — 1T -1
Benefit for income taxes 33,257 — —
[ Other income, net [T 1 222 [ ] 5087 [ | 22 |
Incomel(loss) from continuing operations 57,568 (1,014) 1,976
[Loss from discontinued operations L — 11 @75 | [23671]
Net income/(loss) $ 57568 § (1,289) $ (21,695

21. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007. The quarterly information has not been audited, but in our opinion, includes all normal recurring
adjustments, which are, in the opinion of the Management, necessary for fair statement of the results of the
interim periods.

2008
Three Months Ended
(unaudited)
Narch 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

[Revenue | B T 40413 [ 6 | 43911 I8 [ 56531 B | 79,287 |
Gross profit $ 19,664 § 19,212  § 17457  § 25,024
[Income from continuing operations B ] 4618 | 8 | 11965/ [ | 27571 8 | 38,229 |
Loss from discontinued operations — — — —
Net income B 1 4618 [ 5 | 11965 | 5 | 27571 B | 38,229 |
Earnings per share — basic from continuing

operations 3 0.11 $ 028 % 006 § 0.87
[oss per share — basic from discontinued 1 ‘ i \ ‘

operations 5 — 185 =8 =1 8 —
Net income per share — basic 3 0.11 $ 028 § 006 $ 0.87
Earnings per share — diluted from continuing , l \ ‘5 ‘ 4 } L1> ‘ Bl i ] ‘ 8] ‘
__operations . - 0.11 0.2 0.0 5 0.7
Loss per share — diluted from discontinued

operations $ — 5 — % — % —
Net income per share — diluted (B ] 0.1 B ] 026 | % | 0.08 | & [ 0.79 |
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2007
Three Months Ended
{unaudited)
March 31 June 30 Septemnber 30 December 31

Revenue | ® ] 34119 | 6 | 35336 | B | 37635 [ B | 37,078 |
Gross profit $ 14295 § 10,681 $ 14138 § 14,987
Income/(loss) from continuing operations (B | 7641 B 1 (G993 B | 1716[1 8 | 2,498 |
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations (124) (145) 54 (61)
Net income/(loss) 5 ] 64316 | (6,138 | 1770 8 | 2,437 ]
Earnings/(loss) per share — basic from

continuing operations $ 0.02 % (0.15) $ 0.04 % 0.06
r.oss per share — basic from discontinued ‘ \ ’ ‘

operations b (0.00) | '$ (0.00) ; % 0.00 | $ (0.00
Net income/(loss) per share — basic $ 0.02 $ (0.15) $ 0.04 % 0.06
Farnings/(loss) per share — diluted from ’ & ‘ 2] & L‘B 1 5|) ‘ ‘ 1 41 } & ’ 6‘ ‘

continuing operations 0.0 (0.1 b 0.0 0.0
Net income/(loss) per share — diluted from

discontinued operations $ (0.00) $ (0.00) $ 0.00 $ (0.00)
Net income/(loss) per share — diluted B 1 0.02 [ B | (0.15) | % | 004 B [ 0.0 |

22. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has been notified that some customers may seek indemnification under its contractual
arrangements with those customers for costs associated with defending lawsuits alleging infringement of
certain patents through the use of our products and services in combination with the use of products and
services of multiple other vendors. The Company will continue to negotiate with these customers in good faith
because the Company believes its technology does not infringe on the cited patents and due fo specific
clauses within the customer contractual arrangements that may or may not give rise to an indemnification
obligation. Although the Company cannot currently predict the outcome of these matters, we do not expect the
resolutions will have a material effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers
and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial public offering (the
“Underwriters”): Highstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., et al., United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-8500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of
damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common
Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through December 8, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters
agreed to allocate our Class A Common Stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers
in exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to make
additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs
allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act, and that the underwriters
violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims against us of
violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15,
2005, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs,
all issuer defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope
of the bar order set forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the
scope of the bar order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the
settlement. On December 5, 20086, the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the
District Court’s certification of
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the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims that would be settled in the setilement against the
underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing En Banc with the Second Circuit
on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denied
plaintiffs’ rehearing petition, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more limited class in the District
Court. On June 25, 2007, the District Court signed an Order terminating the settlement. On November 13,
2007, the issuer defendants in certain designated “focus cases” filed a motion to dismiss the second
consolidated amended class action complaints that were filed in those cases. On March 26, 2008, the District
Court issued an Opinion and Order denying, in large part, the motions to dismiss the amended complaints in
the “focus cases.” We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the matter is resolved. We have purchased
Directors and Officers insurance policy which we believe should cover any potential liability that may result
from these claims, but can provide no assurance that any or all of the costs of the litigation will ultimately be
covered by the insurance. No reserve has been created for this matter. More than 300 other companies have
been named in nearly identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the same law firms that represent the
plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us.

On July 12, 2006, we filed suit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against
Mobile 365 (now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement
related to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only
Experience (‘the '748 patent”), issued to the Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan
Americas, and, during the second quarter of 2007, we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365
infringed the claims of our patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $10 million
for past damages and a 12% royalty. The jury also found Sybase 365’s infringement willful and upheld the
validity of the patent. After the jury verdict, both parties filed post-trial motions. The court denied Sybase 365's
post-trial motion for a new trial or a judgment in its favor, granted our motion for a permanent injunction
prohibiting any further infringement by Sybase 365, but stayed the injunction pending the outcome of any
appeal that may be filed, reduced the jury verdict damages award by $2.2 million and vacated the jury finding
of willful infringement. We expect that Sybase 365 will appeal from the final judgment of the district court to
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. In the first quarter of 2008, Sybase 365 filed a request for
reexamination of the '748 patent claiming that the patent is invalid. In the second quarter of 2008, the United
States Patent and Trademark Office granted the request and began the requested reexamination of the '748
patent. There can be no assurances to what extent the matter will continue to be successful, if at all.
Additionally, we could become subject to counterciaims or further challenges to the validity of the '748 patent.
To date, the Company has not received or recorded any amounts related to this jury award.

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material legal
proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of our business.

23. Related Party Transactions

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of
relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Executive
Officer owns a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a
member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at
the sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to
us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable to
us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions
apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may become
available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive agreement at
this new development site.
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...SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

By: /s/ MAURICE B. TOSé

Maurice B. Tosé
Chief Executive Officer, President and
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. The
undersigned hereby constitute and appoint Maurice B. Tosé, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. and Bruce A. White, and
each of them, their true and lawful agents and attorneys-in-fact with full power and authority in said agents and
attorneys-in-fact, and in any one or more of them, to sign for the undersigned and in their respective names as
directors and officers of TeleCommunication Systems, any amendment or supplement hereto. The

undersigned hereby confirm all acts taken by such agents and attorneys-in-fact, and any one or more of them,
as herein authorized

Name Title Date
/s/ MAURICE B. TOSé Chief Executive Officer, President and March 3,
Chairman of the Board (Principal Executive 2009
Maurice B. Tosé Officer)
/s/ THOMAS M. BRANDT, JR. Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice March 3,
President (Principal Financial Officer) and 2009
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. Director
/s/ JAMES M. BETHMANN Director March 3,
2009
James M. Bethmann
/s/ CLYDE A. HEINTZELMAN Director March 3,
2009
Clyde A. Heintzelman
/sl JAN C. HULY Director March 3,
2009
Jan C. Huly
/s/ RICHARD A. KOZAK Director March 3,
2009
Richard A. Kozak
Director March 3,
2009
Weldon H. Latham
/s/ BYRON F. MARCHANT Director March 3,
2009
Byron F. Marchant
s/ RICHARD A. YOUNG Executive Vice President, Chief Operating March 3,
Officer and Director 2009
Richard A. Young
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Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004)
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2006 to each of the Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report
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named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for
the year ended December 31, 2005)

Registration Rights Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company and the Investors named
therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year
ended December 31, 2005)

Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company, Bonanza
Master Fund Ltd., as Agent, and the Secured Parties named therein (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)
Subordination Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company, Silicon Valley Bank, and the
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amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005)
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Company and West Garrett Joint Venture. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

Form of indemnification Agreement. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

Fourth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the
Company'’s definitive proxy statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of stockholders as filed with the SEC on
June 17, 2004 (No. 000-30821))

First Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Registration Staternent on Form S-8 (No. 333-136072))

Optionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))
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by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))

Optionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522))
Optionee Agreement dated July 29, 1998 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
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401(k) and Profit Sharing Plan of the Company dated January 1, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-51656))
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Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young.
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Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Drew A. Morin.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Timothy J. Lorello.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2001)

Services Integration Agreement dated January 31, 2002 by and befween the Company and Hutchison 3G.
(Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001)

Deed of Lease by and between Annapolis Partner, LLC and the Company. (Incorporated by reference to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman. (incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon H. Latham. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Bryon F. Marchant. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr, Maurice B. Tosé. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tosé. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference fo the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)

Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference to the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003)
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322 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

99.01 Report of Independent Auditors- James Cowper

T Management contract, compensatory plans or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to
ltem 15(a)(3) of Form 10-K.
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorparation by reference in Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-144742, 333-136072,
333-118610, 333-107466, 333-66676, 333-51656, and 333-48026) pertaining to various stock incentive and option plans
and in Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-133018, 333-119431, 333-112759, and 333-104305) pertaining to
various stock offerings of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. of our reports dated March 2, 2009, with respect to the
consolidated financial statements and schedule of Telecommunication Systems, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting of Telecommunication Systems, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2008.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
March 2, 2009

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION 8Y, 10-K, March 03, 2009



Exhibit 31.1
I TeleCommunication
| Systems
- Enabling Convergent Technologies™

CERTIFICATIONS
1, Maurice B. Tosé, certify that:
a) | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;

b) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

c) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

d) The registrant's other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’'s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially
affect the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

e) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

/s/ Maurice B. Tosé
Maurice B. Tosé
Chairman, CEO and President

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009
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TeleCommunication
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr, certify that:

a)
b)

c)

d)

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure.controls _and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially
affect the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over finar)cial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal controls over financial reporting.

/s/ Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Sr. Vice President & CFO

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION 8Y, 10-K, March 03, 2009
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Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

I, Maurice B. Tosé, President and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of TeleCommunication Systems,
Inc. (the “Registrant”), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2008 (the “Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Maurice B. Tosé
Maurice B. Tosé
Date: March 3, 2009

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained
by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009
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' TeleCommunication
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Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

1, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr., Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer) of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (the
“Registrant”), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2008 (the “Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Date: March 3, 2009

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained
by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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Source: TELECOMMUNICATION 8Y, 10-K, March 03, 2009



